
 

 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 
At: Gadeirydd ac Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor 

Cynllunio 
Dyddiad: 

 
Dydd Iau, 15 Mawrth 
2012 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712568 

 ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO, DYDD MERCHER, 21 
MAWRTH 2012 am 9.30 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
Rhan 1: Gwahoddir y wasg a'r cyhoedd i fynychu rhan hon y cyfarfod 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGAN BUDDIANNAU   

 Yr Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol neu fuddiannau sy’n 
rhagfarnu unrhyw fusnes sydd i’w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 

 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu ystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys dan Adran 100B(4), Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 

 

wPecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 15FED CHWEFROR 
2012 (COPI YNGHLWM)  (Tudalennau 1 - 28) 

 I’w cadarnhau er cywirdeb. 
 

 

5 CEISIADAU AM GANIATAD I DDATBLYGU (COPIAU YNGHLWM)  
(Tudalennau 29 - 84) 

 

6 HYSBYSIAD O APEL CYNLLUNIO, CATREF PRESWYL ST DAVID'S, 
RHODFA'R DWYRAIN / TARLETON STREET, Y RHYL - YN ERBYN 
GWRTHOD CARTREF GOFAL 60 GWELY, GYDA GWAITH MYNEDFA A 
PHARCIO CYSYLLTIEDIG  (Tudalennau 85 - 86) 

 Adroddiad yn gofyn I gynrychiolwyr y Pwyllgor fynychu apêl cynllunio. 
 

 

 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Ian Armstrong 
Raymond Bartley 
John Bellis 
Brian Blakeley 
Joan Butterfield 
Ann Davies 
James Davies 
Meirick Davies 
Pauline Dobb 
Michael  Eckersley 
Gwilym Evans 
Bobby Feeley 
Ian Gunning 
Diana Hannam 
Colin Hughes 
 

Rhiannon Hughes 
Rhys Hughes 
Huw Jones 
Richard Jones 
Gwyneth Kensler 
Lucy Morris 
Peter Owen 
Dewi Owens 
Allan Pennington 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
David Thomas 
Selwyn Thomas 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Cefyn Williams 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



1

Eitem Agenda Rhif 4 
 

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
 
Cofnodion Cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, 
Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun dydd Mercher 15 Chwefror 2012 am 9.30am. 
 

PRESENNOL
 
Cynghorwyr S Thomas (Cadeirydd), I Armstrong, J R Bartley, J B Bellis, B 
Blakeley, J Butterfield, J A Davies, M Ll Davies, P A Dobb, M J Eckersley, G C 
Evans, R L Feeley, I A Gunning, T R Hughes, E R Jones, H Ll Jones, G M 
Kensler, L M Morris, P W Owen, D Owens, B A Smith, D I Smith, D A J Thomas, 
J Thompson-Hill, C H Williams 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adfywio a Rheoleiddio (G Boase), Prif 
Gyfreithiwr (Susan Cordiner), Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu (P Mead), Prif Swyddog 
Cynllunio (I Weaver), Swyddog Priffyrdd (M Parker), Arweinydd Tîm 
(Cefnogaeth) (G Butler), Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid (J Williams) a 
Chyfieithydd (Catrin Gilkes) 
 
DERBYNIWYD YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB GAN Y 

Cynghorwyr J M Davies, D Hannam, C Hughes, N J Hughes, A G Pennington 
 
2 DATGANIAD BUDD 
 
Datgelodd y Cynghorydd S Thomas fudd yn y cais 45/2011/1470AD ac ENF 
2012/00418 (51 Ffordd Russell, y Rhyl) 
Datgelodd y Cynghorydd C.H Williams fudd yn y cais 02/2011/1041 (Maes 
Hafod, Rhuthun) 
 
3 MATERION BRYS:  Dim 
 
4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 15 RHAGFYR 2011 
 

Penderfynwyd cadarnhau cofnodion cyfarfod y 15 Rhagfyr 2011 am 
gywirdeb. 

 
5 CEISIADAU AM GANIATÂD DATBLYGU 
 

Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, 
Adfywio a Rheoleiddio (dosbarthwyd ynghynt gan rifo’r ceisiadau oedd wedi’u 
cyflwyno i gael penderfyniad y Pwyllgor. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:- 

(a) cadarnhau argymhellion y Swyddogion, yn unol â’r hyn oedd yn yr 
adroddiad a gyflwynwyd, a bod caniatâd neu wrthodiad cynllunio yn cael ei roi 

Eitem Agenda 4

Tudalen 1



2

fel sy’n briodol o fewn y Gorchymyn Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref (Gorchymyn 
Datblygu Cyffredinol a Ganiateir) 1995, Deddf Cynllunio a Iawndal 1991, 
Rheoliadau Hysbysu Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref 1991 a/ neu Ddeddf Cynllunio 
(Adeiladau Rhestredig ac Ardaloedd Cadwraeth) 1990 i’r cynigion sy’n cynnwys 
y ceisiadau canlynol yn ddibynnol ar yr amodau a rifwyd yn y drefnlen a 
gyflwynwyd:- 

Tudalen 2



3

Eitem 1 
 
Rhif y Cais:  01/2011/1417/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  37 Stryd Fawr, Dinbych 
 
Disgrifiad: Newid defnydd siop Dosbarth A1 i swyddfa etholaeth 

Dosbarth B1  
 
Dywedwyd iddyn nhw dderbyn y llythyron datganiadau ychwanegol hyn oddi 
wrth: 
Yr ymgeisydd, yn sôn am yr ymdrechion i farchnata’r eiddo 
Swyddfa Antoinette Sandbach AC yn gofyn am ganiatâd dros dro i ymestyn hyd 
at Fehefin 2016, (diwedd tymor Llywodraeth Cymru). 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd G Kensler y byddai’n well ganddi weld yr eiddo’n cael ei 
ddefnyddio fel swyddfa na’i adael yn wag er mai stryd o siopau oedd hon. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd R Bartley a oedd yr eiddo wedi’i farchnata fel siop  
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Cynllunio, Ian Weaver, ei fod wedi’i farchnata’n 
aflwyddiannus am 2 flynedd ond deallai bod materion cytundebol oedd yn 
golygu na fyddai ar gael yn wag hyd at fis Hydref 2012.  Mae swyddogion yn 
ceisio osgoi  “ffenestr wag” ar stryd (ffenestri gwag/ swyddfeydd/ siopau betio) 
ond cytunodd fod hyn yn well nag eiddo gwag. 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd M Ll Davies er hynny y dylid ei roi ar y farchnad agored. 
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adfywio a Rheoleiddio,  
Graham Boase y gellid adnewyddu caniatad 2 flynedd dros dro.  Mae’r defnydd 
arfaethedig yn erbyn polisi ond mae’n well na siop wag ar y Stryd Fawr. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd J Thompson Hill a ddylai aelodau’r blaid wleidyddol 
dan sylw ddatgan budd.  Dywedwyd wrth y pwyllgor nad oedd hyn yn 
angenrheidiol. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiwyd y dylid RHOI caniatad 
O’i roi i bleidlais: 
19 pleidlais dros Ganiatáu 
3 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
1 wedi ymatal 
 
FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
O anfon Nodyn Newydd at yr Ymgeisydd 
 
Dileer y Nodyn cyntaf i’r Ymgeisydd ac anfon hwn: 
 
Hysbysir chi bod caniatad cynllunio wedi’i roi dros dro (2 flynedd) gan nad yw’r 
Cyngor yn ystyried colli siop manwerthu Dosbarth A1 am dymor hir yn y lle hwn 
yn dderbyniol o safbwynt polisi nac egwyddor cynllunio.  Hysbysir chi i 

Tudalen 3



4

ymchwilio i’r defnydd posibl o eiddo arall y tu allan i’r Brif Stryd Siopa gyda 
Swyddogion Datblygu Economaidd y Cyngor. 

Tudalen 4



5

 
Eitem 2 
 
Rhif y Cais:  02/2011/1041/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Defnyddio tir garejys ym Maes Hafod, Rhuthun  
 
Disgrifiad: Codi teras o 3 annedd ar 0.0536 hectar o dir a chreu 

mynediadau newydd i gerbydau 
 
(Datgelodd y Cynghorydd Cefyn Williams fudd yn y cais hwn.) 
 
Dywedwyd iddyn nhw dderbyn y llythyron datganiadau ychwanegol canlynol: 
Swyddog Tai Fforddiadwy DCC– (cefnogi)  
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd T R Hughes yn bryderus na fyddai digon o olau stryd a 
gofynnodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies ble fyddai’r trigolion oedd yn arfer parcio 
yn y garejys yn awr yn parcio. 
 
Eglurodd y Swyddog Cynllunio Emer O’Connor fod y garejys ar y safle wedi’u 
dymchwel a bod y tir yn wag.  Mae gan yr anheddau arfaethedig le parcio 
penodol. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd D I Smith y dylid rhoi Caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd R L Feeley 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
24 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
0 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
 
 

Tudalen 5



6

Eitem 3 
 
Rhif y Cais:  02/2011/1419/PR 
 
Lleoliad: Tir y tu ôl i 27 Stryd y Ffynnon ac yn wynebu Ffordd 

Wynnstay, Rhuthun  
 
Disgrifiad: Cyflwynwyd manylion mynedfa, ymddangosiad, graddfa, 

tirlunio a chynllun 2 annedd yn unol ag Amod Rhif 1 Cod 
Rhif caniatad cynllunio 02/2007/0867/PO 

 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd T R Hughes beth fyddai’r effaith ar yr Ardal 
Gadwraeth. 
 
Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies y dylid rhoi cladin carreg ar yr 
anheddau arfaethedig i gydweddu â’r adeiladau o gwmpas.  Dywedodd y Prif 
Swyddog Cynllunio, Ian Weaver, fod y wal gerrig o flaen y safle i aros.  Nid 
oedd yn erbyn y defnydd o fric.  Nid oedd y Pensaer Cadwraeth wedi codi 
unrhyw wrthwynebiad. 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies mai’r unig waith bric gerllaw oedd porth y 
Co-op.  Cyfeiriodd at benderfyniad apêl ar eiddo ym Modelwyddan lle cytunwyd 
i ddefnyddio carreg oherwydd yr effaith ar yr Ardal Gadwraeth gerllaw. 
 
Teimlai’r Prif Swyddog Cynllunio, Ian Weaver, petai’r ymgeiswyr yn 
gwrthwynebu i ddefnyddio carreg y gallen nhw apelio yn erbyn yr amod.  Nid 
oedd ganddo farn gref y naill ffordd na’r llall ac y byddai’n fodlon cael ei arwain 
gan y pwyllgor. 
 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies fod amod yn cael ei chynnwys bod 
disgwyl iddyn nhw ddefnyddio cladin carreg ar yr adeiladau.  Eiliwyd gan y 
Cynghorydd G M Kensler.  
 

Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd R L Feeley y dylid  RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd D I Smith 
 
O’i roi i bleidlais: 
24 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
1 bleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 
 
FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
O anfon Nodyn Newydd at yr Ymgeisydd 
 
Ychwanegu Nodyn at yr Ymgeisydd 
Cyn cyflwyno manylion a ddisgwylir gan Amod 3 y caniatad hwn, cynghorir chi i 
drafod y deunyddiau allanol arfaethedig i’w defnyddio gyda’r Swyddog Achos, 
yn benodol i ymchwilio i’r defnydd posibl o fwy o garreg ar waliau’r anheddau 
a’r math o fric wyneb i’w ddewis. 

Tudalen 6



7

Eitem 4 

Rhif y Cais:  16/2007/1363/PO 
 
Lleoliad:  Tir yn Neuadd Llanbedr, Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd, Rhuthun  
 
Disgrifiad: Dymchwel y brif neuadd (11 fflat) a datblygu 0.33ha o dir 

drwy godi adeilad arall yn cynnwys 11 fflat a chodi 6 
annedd o fewn y tir a newid y fynedfa gerbydau bresennol 
(amlinelliad - pob mater ar gadw i gael cymeradwyaeth 
bellach) 

  
Dosbarthwyd adroddiad o ymweliad safle dydd Gwener 10 Chwefror 2012. 
 
Siaradwyr Cyhoeddus:  RHYS DAVIES (YN ERBYN) 
Siaradodd Mr Davies yn erbyn y cynnig hwn ar ran nifer o drigolion lleol.  
Roedd wedi astudio polisi HSG8 ac wedi dod i’r un casgliad â’r swyddogion.  
Roedd yn meddwl tybed a ellid trwsio’r Neuadd ond teimlai nad oedd digon o 
fanylion yn yr Arolwg Saernïol i fynegi barn. 
 
Teimlai bod y swyddogion wedi rhoi arweiniad clir yn yr adroddiad ac anogodd 
y pwyllgor i wrthod caniatad. 
Eglurodd y Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu, Paul Mead, fod dau gais o flaen y 
pwyllgor heddiw, Mae’r safle o fewn AONB Bryniau Clwyd a thu allan i ffin 
datblygu Llanbedr DC. 
 
Y defnydd cynllunio swyddogol olaf i’r Neuadd oedd fel t! bwyta gydag 11 fflat 
uwchben - mae’r ymgeisydd yn awr yn byw yno.  Nid yw’r Neuadd yn 
Rhestredig ac nid oes yn rhaid ei chadw ond nid yw polisi cenedlaethol yn 
caniatáu amnewid un adeilad gyda nifer o anheddau.  Nid yw’r Cynllun 
Datblygu Unedol yn cynnwys y sefyllfa hon ond polisi HSG8 yw’r polisi 
perthnasol agosaf.  Fodd bynnag, nid yw’r polisi hwn yn caniatáu amnewid 
tebyg am debyg. 
 
Roedd y Cynghorwyr P A Dobb a J R Bartley eisiau trafod mater cyffredinol y 
safle wrth ystyried yr ail gais.  Teimlai’r Cynghorydd J R Bartley gydymdeimlad 
dros drigolion a gobeithiai na fyddai’r Neuadd yn cael ei gadael i adfeilio fel 
Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru yn Ninbych. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd S Thomas at yr ymweliad safle a theimlai bod yr 
adeilad yn werth ei gadw. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd P A Dobb y dylid GWRTHOD caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd D Owens 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
0 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
23 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
1 wedi atal 
FELLY GWRTHODWYD CANIATAD 

Tudalen 7



8

Eitem 5 
 
Rhif y Cais:  20/2009/0941/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Tir yn Neuadd Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd, Rhuthun 
  
Disgrifiad: Dymchwel Neuadd Llanbedr a chodi 9 t! teulu ar wahân o 

fewn y gerddi ac adnewyddu, estyn a newid defnydd 
garejys gerllaw i roi 1 annedd o dan do helaeth fydd yn 
cael ei baratoi fel hafan sylweddol i ystlumod. 

 
Siaradwyr Cyhoeddus:   
Mr RHYS DAVIES (YN ERBYN) 
Ailadroddodd Mr Davies ei sylwadau blaenorol yn ymwneud â HSG8 - nad 
oedd y polisi’n caniatau dymchwel y Neuadd a’i hamnewid gyda 9 annedd. 
Mynegodd bryderon am yr effaith ar yr AONB.  Mae’r anheddau arfaethedig yn 
sylweddol.  Cyfeiriodd at adeiladau adfeiliedig eraill tebyg sydd wedi’u 
hadnewyddu gyda dychymyg. 
 
Ms JILL NAYLOR (DROS) 
Derbyniodd Ms Naylor y cynnig nad oedd y safle’n gorffwys yn dda gyda’r 
AONB.  Fodd bynnag, roedd yn ymwybodol o ddiffyg tir i adeiladu tai yn Sir 
Ddinbych ac awgrymodd efallai y byddai’n rhaid i’r Cyngor felly ystyried 
safleoedd tir glas a’r rhai yn yr AONB.  Teimlai Ms Naylor na fyddai 
adnewyddu’r Neuadd yn economaidd, gan fod y cwymp yn y farchnad dai wedi 
effeithio ar werthiant fflatiau’n arbennig o wael.  Teimlai Ms Naylor fod y cynnig 
yn gynllun da, yn gynaliadwy ac yn arloesol, gan barchu’r topograffi. Byddai’r 
cynllun to gwyrdd yn ategu at y tirlun. 
 
Atgoffodd y Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu, Paul Mead, y pwyllgor fod caniatad wedi’i 
wrthod i 6 annedd, roedd y cais hwn am 9 annedd newydd.  Nid yw’r Neuadd 
yn Rhestredig ac nid yw CADW yn ystyried ei bod yn addas ar gyfer bod yn 
rhestredig felly ni ellir cymharu’r sefyllfa â’r cyn Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru, 
Dinbych.  Roedd yr ymgeisydd wedi cael caniatad cynllunio i drawsnewid y 
Neuadd yn 20 fflat ond roedd hwn wedi darfod.  Mewn ateb i hawliad y siaradwr 
bod tan-ddyraniad tir ar gyfer tai - dangosodd Mr Mead, er bod y cynllun hwn ar 
gyfer 9 annedd, roedd 11 fflat yn y Neuadd yn barod.  Mae hyn yn golygu colled 
net o 2 annedd. Byddai’r cynnig yn niweidiol i’r AONB. 
 
Trafodaeth Gyffredinol: 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd P A Dobb ei bod wedi mynychu cyfarfod diweddar o’r 
Cyngor Cymuned ac wedi trafod y cynnig gyda nhw. Maen nhw’n awr dros y 
cynnig hwn.  Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Dobb wrth y Pwyllgor mai un adeilad yw 
Neuadd Llanbedr ar safle 20 annedd, mae’r ardal yn gymuned ynddi ei hun 
gyda ffordd breifat ati.  
Mae’r trigolion wedi byw gyda’r ansicrwydd am nifer o flynyddoedd ac roedd yn 
effeithio ar werth eu cartrefi. Mae’r mwyafrif o’r cymdogion yn gefnogol. 
 
Mae’r safle yn yr AONB ond ni ellir ei weld o Foel Famau na’r llwybr troed. 
Prynwyd y Neuadd ym 1919 gyda 12 erw.  Erbyn hyn, dim ond 7 erw sydd ar ôl 

Tudalen 8



9

gan i’r gweddill gael ei werthu ar gyfer tai.  Teimlai’r Cynghorydd Dobb nad yw’r 
prif adeilad o unrhyw werth pensaernïol a’i fod yn hyllbeth i’r trigolion. 
 
Cefnogodd y Cynghorydd B A Smith y Cynghorydd Dobb a chyfeiriodd at 
sylwadau Cyd Bwyllgor Ymgynghori’r AONB. Teimlai bod y rhain yn oddrychol.  
Anogodd ymagwedd pragmatig a theimlai fod y polisi HSG yn cydnabod y gellid 
amnewid tai amhriodol. 
 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd R L Feeley hefyd ei chefnogaeth.  Teimlai bod 
cymariaethau gydag Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru’n ddiwarant.  Nid yw’r Neuadd yn 
Rhestredig ac nid oedd bellach yn bosibl cynnal eiddo mawr yn effeithiol.  
Teimlai ei fod yn gynnig cyffrous a bod y ffyrdd a’r fynedfa’n addas ar gyfer 
llawer mwy o eiddo. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies am yr effaith ar yr Eglwys gyfagos. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd G C Evans am ddarpariaeth tai fforddiadwy. 
 
Cytunodd y Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu, Paul Mead, fod y cymdogion wedi blino 
ar y sefyllfa ond eu bod yn teimlo mai hwn yw’r lleiaf o’r ddau ddrwg gan fod y 
tai a gynigir yn y cais hwn ymhellach i ffwrdd oddi wrth eiddo presennol.  
Atgoffodd y pwyllgor os oedden nhw’n teimlo bod 6 eiddo’n anaddas, yna bod 
yn rhaid bod 9 hefyd yn anaddas.  Roedd y cynllun yn awgrymu y byddai’r tai 
arfaethedig yn darparu’r cyfle posibl ar gyfer mewnlenwi yn y dyfodol.  Mae’r tai 
arfaethedig ar gynllun modern a byddai’r Eglwys yn cael ei heffeithio drwy gael 
9 t! gerllaw.  Nid oes un o’r anheddau arfaethedig yn unedau fforddiadwy. 
 
Cynghorodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adfywio a Rheoleiddio, 
Graham Boase, ar effaith y datblygiad.  Mae’r Neuadd wedi’i lleoli yn ei thirlun 
ei hun, bwriedir gosod 9 annedd 5-ystafell wely ar draws y tirlun hwnnw.  
Cynghorodd ymhellach ar faterion polisi, bod y safle hwn mewn cefn gwlad 
agored ac os ydy’r polisi AONB HSG8 yn berthnasol, mae’r cynnig hwn yn 
wrthwynebus iddo.  Os gwrthodir y cais, mae cyfle gan yr ymgeisydd i apelio a 
chyfiawnhau’r cynnig i Arolygydd. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies sut gellid darparu tai fforddiadwy.  
Dywedodd G Boase nad oedd unrhyw dai fforddiadwy wedi’u cynnig a’i fod i 
fyny i’r pwyllgor gymeradwyo ai peidio. 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd P A Dobb y byddai’r garej 2 lofft wedi’i drawsnewid ar y 
safle’n cyfrif fel uned fforddiadwy. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd P A Dobb y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd R L Feeley 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
12 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
12 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
1 wedi atal 
Defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais fwrw i WRTHOD caniatad 
FELLY GWRTHODWYD CANIATAD 

Tudalen 9



10

Eitem 6 
 
Rhif y Cais:  17/2012/0038/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Penlan, Ffordd Rhuthun, Llandegla, Wrecsam 
 
Disgrifiad:  Codi estyniad i adeilad amaethyddol presennol 
 
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Cynllunio, Ian Weaver, wrth yr Aelodau fod yn rhaid 
i’r pwyllgor benderfynu ar y cais hwn oherwydd iddo gael ei gyflwyno gan 
gymar aelod o’r staff. 
 
Ni chafwyd unrhyw drafodaeth ar yr eitem hon. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd T R Hughes y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd G M Kensler 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
24 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
0 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
 

Tudalen 10



11

Eitem 7 
 
Rhif y Cais:  30/2011/1280/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Tir sy’n ffinio â Thafarn y Trefnant, Trefnant, Dinbych 
 
Disgrifiad:  Codi 8 annedd a gwaith cysylltiol 
 
Dywedwyd iddyn nhw dderbyn llythyron datganiadau hwyr oddi wrth D"r 
Cymru, 
E Davies, Bryntirion, Trefnant 
E P & M A Carey, 2 Bryn Dyffryn, Trefnant 
E M Hughes, Arfryn, Trefnant 
 
Siaradwyr Cyhoeddus: 
Mr Huw Evans (dros.)   
Dywedodd Mr Evans fod y cynllun wedi’i ddiwygio yn dilyn y gwrthodiad 
blaenorol, roedd gostwng y nifer o pub arfaethedig yn golygu na fyddai angen 
mannau hamdden.  Roedd y dafarn wedi’i gwerthu ar wahân ac roedd digon o 
dir ar gael i sicrhau mannau parcio.  Ni fyddai cwrtil yr Adeilad Rhestredig yn 
cael ei effeithio gan mai rhannol restredig yw blaen yr adeilad.  Nid yw’r safle yn 
yr Ardal Gadwraeth.  Yr unig fynedfa ymarferol i’r safle yw’r un bresennol a bu’n 
rhaid i’r cynllun fod o fewn y cyfyngiadau hynny.  Nid yw’n bosibl cynyddu 
gwelededd ar hyd ffordd Henllan. 
 
Teimlai Mr Evans gan mai dim ond pedwar gwrthwynebiad a dderbyniwyd, yn 
wahanol i’r nifer o wrthwynebiadau i’r cynllun blaenorol, bod hyn yn dystiolaeth 
o welliant. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies sut roedden nhw wedi cyfrif y dyraniad o 
Dai Fforddiadwy.  Roedd hefyd yn bryderus am y perygl i drafnidiaeth a 
cherddwyr ar ffordd Henllan a ger yr ysgol. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd G C Evans am y cyfraniad fydd ei angen gan bob t! 
ar gyfer cynefin y Fadfall Gribog. Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog Cynllunio, Ian 
Weaver, y Swyddog Priffyrdd, Mike Parker, ac eglurodd fod y ddarpariaeth Tai 
Fforddiadwy yn cael ei chyfrif fel 30% o 8, wedi’i dalgrynnu i 2 uned.  
Dywedodd ymhellach er nad oedd unrhyw fadfall wedi’u gweld ar y safle, roedd 
y CCW yn credu y gallai madfall groesi’r safle yn ystod cyfnodau mudo. Roedd 
y cyfraniad tuag at wella’r cynefin wedi’i drafod gyda’r ymgeiswyr. 
Eglurodd y Swyddog Priffyrdd, Mike Parker, y bydd llwybr troed yn cael ei greu 
drws nesaf i’r dafarn, ar hyd Stryd Henllan.  Ni fyddai’r cynnydd mewn 
trafnidiaeth i’r safle, sy’n cael ei ddefnyddio ar hyn o bryd ar gyfer parcio, yn 
sylweddol.  Roedd digon o ddarpariaeth ar gyfer parcio i’r dafarn, roedd y 
fynedfa’n ddigon llydan a bydd llwybr newydd i’r pentref. Ni fyddai’n bosibl 
cyfiawnhau gwrthod ar dir priffyrdd.  Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau, nid oedd Mr 
Parker yn meddwl y byddai’n bosibl ymestyn y cyfyngiadau parcio llinellau 
melyn dwbl ar ffordd Henllan. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 11



12

 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd P W Owen y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd hyn gan y Cynghorydd J Bellis 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
21 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
3 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
1 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD  
Yn ddibynnol ar Adran 106 
 
Mae’r argymhelliad yn ddibynnol ar gwblhau rhwymedigaeth o fewn Adran 106 
Deddf Cynllunio 1990 o fewn 12 mis i ddyddiad y penderfyniad gan y pwyllgor i 
sicrhau 
 
(a) darparu 2 uned o dai fforddiadwy a chadw’r unedau hyn i bwrpas 

fforddiadwy 
(b) talu swm gohiriedig o £2,500 ar gyfer gwelliant/ cynnal a chadw cynefin y 

Fadfall Gribog o fewn radiws o 1km o bentref Trefnant. 
 
Bydd yr Ardystiad Penderfyniad yn cael ei ryddhau dim ond ar ôl cwblhau’r 
rhwymedigaeth gyfreithiol ac wrth fethu â chwblhau o fewn y cyfnod amser.  
Bydd y cais yn cael ei ailgyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor a’i benderfynu yn unol â 
pholisïau’r Cyngor sy’n gymwys ar y pryd hwnnw, os bydd amgylchiadau 
materol yn newid y tu hwnt i gyfnod o 12 mis ar ôl y pwyllgor hwn. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 12



13

Eitem 8 
 
Rhif y Cais:  40/2011/1515/PF 
 
Lleoliad: Ysbyty Glan Clwyd, Ffordd Rhuddlan, Bodelwyddan, y 

Rhyl 
 
Disgrifiad: Adleoli’r Adran Damweiniau ac Achosion Brys presennol i 

gyfleuster newydd gan gynnwys adnewyddu ac ymestyn yr 
adeilad presennol gydag ychwanegiad llawr cyntaf ar gyfer 
theatr a lle ar yr ail lawr i beiriannau, gwaith tirlunio 
cysylltiol a lle newydd i ambiwlansys ollwng cleifion 

 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am leoliad y cyfleuster newydd. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog Cynllunio, Ian Weaver, y byddai’r ysbyty’n cael ei ad-
drefnu i gyd ynghyd â dymchwel rhai mannau.  Bydd yr Uned Damweiniau ac 
Achosion Brys yn symud i gefn y prif adeilad.  Dywedodd wrth y pwyllgor y 
bydden nhw’n colli rhywfaint o fannau parcio.  Fodd bynnag, nid oes unrhyw 
staff ychwanegol yn cael eu recriwtio ac roedd maes parcio mawr penodedig 
wedi’i gymeradwyo’n ddiweddar ar gyfer staff. Bydd parcio Ambiwlansys yn 
cael ei resymoli wrth ymyl yr Adran Damweiniau ac Achosion Brys newydd. 
 
Dywedodd y Swyddog Priffyrdd, Mike Parker, na fyddai’r brif fynedfa bresennol 
i drafnidiaeth yn cael ei heffeithio. Bydd amodau’n cael eu gosod i sicrhau 
Cynllun Teithio Gwyrdd yn yr ardal. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd E R Jones am natur “dros dro” y maes parcio 
newydd.  Dywedodd Ian Weaver mai dros dro yr oedd, am 5 mlynedd.  Fodd 
bynnag, roedd y gwaith ar yr arwynebedd o safon uchel ac yn fuddsoddiad 
mawr i’r ysbyty.  Gellid ymestyn y caniatad dros dro. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies pam bod y cais wedi’i gyflwyno i’r 
pwyllgor a theimlai y byddai’n ddefnyddiol pe gallai adroddiadau’r Swyddog 
egluro hyn yn y dyfodol.  Dywedodd Ian Weaver fod hwn yn ddatblygiad mawr 
yr oedd angen penderfyniad y pwyllgor arno ond byddai’n sicrhau bod y 
rheswm dros benderfyniad y pwyllgor yn cael ei egluro yn adroddiadau 
swyddogion. 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd M Eckersley y dylai’r ysbyty ystyried maes parcio aml-
lawr ar y safle gan ei fod yn aml yn brysur. 
 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd E R Jones y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J R Bartley 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
25 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
0 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 

Tudalen 13



14

Eitem 9 
 
Rhif y Cais:  44/2011/1326/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Tir yn ffinio â Bryn Castell, Lôn Hylas, Rhuddlan, y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad: Codi annedd un llawr a chreu mynedfa newydd i gerbydau 

(arwynebedd y safle 0.04ha) 
 
Datgelodd y Cynghorydd J A Davies fudd yn y cais canlynol. 
 
Dywedwyd eu bod wedi derbyn y llythyron datganiad ychwanegol canlynol oddi 
wrth: 
Gymdeithas Hanes Lleol Rhuddlan  
 
Dosbarthwyd adroddiad o’r ymweliad safle a gynhaliwyd ar 10 Chwefror 2012. 
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd J A Davies yn cwestiynu uchder y wal a mynegodd 
bryderon am ddiogelwch defnyddwyr y priffyrdd gan fod y safle ar fryn a chornel 
heb lwybr troed ar yr ochr agosaf i’r safle.  Roedd diogelwch y plant sy’n mynd 
i’r ysgol gerllaw yn bryder pellach gan fod cerbydau weithiau’n gorfod gwrth-
droi i mewn i giatiau’r ysgol i droi. 
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd Davies yn arbennig yn dymuno nodi’r digwyddiad pan na 
fyddai’r gwasanaethau brys yn gallu mynd i mewn i’r ysgol oherwydd cerbydau 
wedi’u parcio ar ochr y ffordd. 
 
Cafwyd adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd J R Bartley ar yr ymweliad safle.  
Dywedodd iddo gyrraedd am 8.40am, amser prysur yn yr ysgol ond sylwodd 
bod yr holl blant yn cerdded ar y palmant ar yr ochr arall i’r ffordd i’r safle.  
Dywedodd fod llinellau melyn dwbl ar ochr y ffordd sy’n atal parcio yno. 
 
Cytunodd y Cynghorydd I Armstrong fod hon yn ffordd ddwyffordd gul. 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd G C Evans y dylai gwrthwynebiadau o’r fath fod wedi’u 
codi yng nghyfnod y cais amlinellol. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd J Bellis pam nad oedd gan y Swyddog Cadwraeth 
unrhyw sylwadau i’w gwneud.  Teimlai y dylid cydnabod gwrthwynebiad y 
Cyngor Tref oherwydd dylid ystyried pwysigrwydd hanesyddol y wal gerrig a’r 
bwthyn to gwellt gerllaw. 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorwyr D Owen a J Thompson-Hill y byddai colli’r wal yn 
niweidiol i’r ardal. 
 
Credai’r Cynghorydd B A Smith y gellid tynnu’r wal gan nad oedd unrhyw 
Orchymyn Cadw arni. 
 
Gobaith y Cynghorydd M Ll Davies oedd y byddai’r wal yn cael ei chadw.  
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd D I Smith mai dim ond 6m o’r wal fyddai’n cael ei 
dynnu. 

Tudalen 14



15

 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd S Thomas, un o’r trigolion lleol dros nifer o flynyddoedd, 
fod y llinellau melyn wedi gwneud gwahaniaeth mawr i anhrefn y drafnidiaeth.  
Y cynnig oedd bod y wal yn cael ei hagor ar fan ehangaf y ffordd ac y gellid trin 
y gwaith yn gydymdeimladol. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu, Paul Mead, at y cynlluniau a 
ddosbarthwyd.  Cynigiwyd gofod o 6m ym mlaen wal o 20m.  Mae cynllun y 
byngalo yn fach a heb fod yn amlwg iawn.  Mewn ymateb i ymholiad gan y 
Cynghorydd J A Davies am uchder y wal, teimlai y gallai amrywio oherwydd 
bod y safle ar lethr a’r clawdd fel gordo.  Byddai’r clawdd yn sgrinio’r safle.  
Caniatawyd y datblygiad yn flaenorol ar apêl. 
 
Adroddodd y Swyddog Priffyrdd, Mike Parker, ar ei asesiad manwl o’r ardal.  
Caniatawyd y datblygiad ar apêl ym mis Gorffennaf 2006 ond nid oedd un o’r 
rhesymau a roddwyd dros wrthod ar sail priffyrdd.  Dywedodd fod y fynedfa’n 
ymddangos yn ddiogel. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd E R Jones y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J R Bartley 
 
Gwnaed cais am BLEIDLAIS WEDI’I CHOFNODI.  Cefnogwyd hyn gan y nifer 
angenrheidiol o Aelodau. 
 
O’i roi i bleidlais: 
O BLAID RHOI CANIATAD:  15 
I Armstrong, J R Bartley, B Blakeley, J Ondterfield, M Ll Davies, G C 
Evans, R L Feeley, T R Hughes, E R Jones, H Ll Jones, L M Morris, D I 
Smith, D A J Thomas, S Thomas, C H Williams 

YN ERBYN RHOI CANIATAD:  8 
J Bellis, J A Davies, P A Dobb, M J Eckersley, I A Gunning, P Owen, D 
Owens, J Thompson-Hill 

ATALIWYD:  2 
G M Kensler, B A Smith 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
Yn ddibynnol ar: 
 
Amod Ychwanegol 
 
11. Amod Cyn-dechrau 
Ni ddylid dechrau datblygu hyd nes bod cynllun o ddraeniad d"r budr a 
draeniad d"r arwynebol wedi’i gyflwyno a’i gymeradwyo gan yr Awdurdod 
Cynllunio Lleol a bod y cynllun cymeradwy wedi’i gwblhau cyn i unrhyw un 
symud i mewn i’r adeilad(au). 
 
Rheswm:  Sicrhau draeniad boddhaol i’r safle ac osgoi llifogydd. 
 

Tudalen 15



16

Nodiadau i’r ymgeisydd 
Nodiadau Cynghori Safonol y Bwrdd D"r. 

Tudalen 16



17

 
Eitem 10 
 
Rhif y Cais:  45/2011/0766/PR 
 
Lleoliad:  Tir yn Ne Ddwyrain y Rhyl rhwng Bro Deg a Ffordd Dyserth, 

y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad: Manylion datblygu Cam 2 a 3 gan gynnwys lleoli, cylunio ac 

ymddangosiad allanol 228 annedd, tirlunio, mynedfeydd a 
mannau agored cysylltiol a gyflwynwyd yn unol ag Amod 1 
caniatad cynllunio amlinellol Cod Rhif 45/2004/1376/PO 
(gan gynnwys cynllun safle mynegol yn unig a dyluniad 
2.5ha o dir y tu allan i safle’r cais ar gyfer ysgol, canolfan 
gymuned, cae chwarae a man gêmau aml-ddefnydd). 

 
Diolchodd y Cynghorydd B Blakeley i’r Swyddogion am y gwaith caled yn 
sicrhau cyflwyno’r cais hwn. 
 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad y Cynghorydd J Bellis, dywedodd y Rheolwr Rheoli 
Datblygu, Paul Mead, fod y Cyngor Tref wedi penderfynu peidio â 
gwrthwynebu. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd I Gunning y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd B Blakeley 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
23 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
1 bleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
 

Tudalen 17



18

Eitem 11 
 
Rhif y Cais:  45/2011/1304/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  16 Rhodfa Maes Hir, y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad:  Codi estyniadau i flaen, ochr a chefn annedd 
 
Nid oedd unrhyw drafodaeth ar yr eitem hon. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd B Blakeley y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J Butterfield 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
23 pleidlais dros GANIATÁU 
1 bleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 

Tudalen 18



19

Eitem 12 
 
Rhif y Cais:   45/2011/1444/PF 
 
Lleoliad: Tir wrth ymyl H Bridge rhwng Kwik Save a’r Rheilffordd, 

Ffordd y Marsh, y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad: newid defnydd swyddfa a storfa bresennol i swyddfa/storfa 

a siop mân werthu Dosbarth A1 - pob un yn rhannol 
 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd D A J Thomas bryder am golli adeilad mân werthu 
yng nghanol y dref, y perygl o dân gwyllt/ ffrwydradau cryf ger eiddo preswyl a’r 
brif reilffordd.  Teimlai y gellid cael hyd i eiddo mwy addas ar gyfer y busnes 
hwn. 
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd J Butterfield hefyd yn bryderus am iechyd a diogelwch a 
theimlai nad oedd hwn yn lle priodol i gynnal busnes o’r fath. 
 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd I Gunning bryder am yr orsaf betrol gerllaw – petai’n 
cael ei heffeithio gan dân, gallai bod mor agos at ffrwydriadau yn y busnes 
arfaethedig achosi digwyddiad mawr. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd M Eckersley a oedd y Gwasanaeth Tân wedi mynegi 
barn a chyfeiriodd at ddigwyddiad diweddar mewn ardal breswyl yn Sir Efrog. 
 
Teimlai’r Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu, Paul Mead, fod yr argymhelliad i roi 
caniatad dros dro yn benderfyniad wedi’i drafod ac roedd yn deall pryderon yr 
Aelodau.  Gofynnodd i’r pwyllgor awgrymu rhesymau cynllunio dros wrthod. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd D A J Thomas y dylid GWRTHOD caniatad gan 
na ellid ystyried ei bod yn dderbyniol caniatau cyflwyno defnydd mân 
werthu o fewn Ardal Prif Gyflogaeth benodedig 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J Butterfield 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
2 bleidlais dros GANIATAU 
20 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY GWRTHODWYD CANIATAD YN ERBYN ARGYMHELLIAD 
 
Rheswm dros Wrthod: 
Ym marn yr awdurdod cynllunio lleol, byddai cyflwyno siop mân werthu ar dir 
sy’n rhan o Ardal Prif Gyflogaeth benodedig yng nghynllun Datblygu Unedol Sir 
Ddinbych yn annerbyniol mewn egwyddor. Pwrpas yr ardaloedd hyn yw lle i 
ddatblygu cyflogaeth ac nid er mwyn eu defnyddio ar gyfer mân werthu a 
masnach.  Ystyrir y cynnig yn un sy’n gyferbyniol i fwriad Polisi EMP2 y Cynllun 
Unedol a byddai’n gosod cynsail annerbyniol i ddatblygu defnydd mân werthu y 
tu allan i ardaloedd mân werthu yn y dref gan gyfyngu ar y tir sydd ar gael ar 
gyfer cyflogaeth. 

Tudalen 19



20

 
 
Ychwanegu Nodyn newydd at yr Ymgeisydd 
Cynghorir chi i gysylltu â Swyddogion Adfywio Economaidd y Cyngor i drafod 
opsiynau ar gyfer gweithredu’r busnes. 
 
Cymerwyd y penderfyniad sy’n GYFERBYNIOL i Argymhelliad y Swyddogion 
am y rhesymau uchod. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 20



21

Eitem 13 
 
Rhif y Cais:  45/2011/1449/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Tir rhwng 101 a 111 Ffordd Trellewelyn, y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad: Codi 1 annedd un llawr ar wahân a newid y fynedfa 

bresennol i gerbydau (arwynebedd y safle 0.04 ha) 
 
Mae’r cais hwn o flaen y Pwyllgor oherwydd mai’r Cyngor Sir yw perchennog y 
safle. 
 
Nid oedd unrhyw drafodaeth ar yr eitem hon. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd B Blakeley y dylid RHOI caniatad  
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J Butterfield  

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
21 pleidlais dros GANIATAU 
0 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
 

Tudalen 21



22

Eitem 14 
 
Rhif y Cais:  45/2011/1470/AD 
 
Lleoliad:  51 Ffordd Russell, y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad:  Arddangos 1 arwydd rhydd-sefyll (cais adolygol) 
 
Datgelodd y Cynghorydd S Thomas fudd yn y cais canlynol a gadawodd y 
Siambr yn ystod yr ystyriaeth – cymerodd y Cynghorydd J R Bartley at y 
Gadeiryddiaeth. 
 
Cytunodd y Cynghorydd J Butterfield gyda’r Swyddogion a theimlai y dylai 
arwyddion fod yn fwy cydymdeimladol i’r ardal. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd J Butterfield y dylid GWRTHOD caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J Bellis 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
6 pleidlais dros GANIATAU 
14 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
1 wedi atal 

FELLY GWRTHODWYD CANIATAD 
 

Tudalen 22



23

Eitem 15 
 
Rhif y Cais:  45/2011/1490/PF 
 
Lleoliad:  Ysgol Dewi Sant, Ffordd Rhuddlan,  y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad: Codi estyniad dau lawr i roi dolen gyswllt i goridor 

presennol ar y llawr gwaelod, toiledau ychwanegol ar y 
llawr cyntaf a grisiau fel dull dianc ychwanegol. 

 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd amheuon am y cynllun modern ond nid oedd unrhyw 
drafodaeth bellach ar yr eitem hon. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd B Blakeley y dylid RHOI caniatad 
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd I Gunning 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
20 pleidlais dros GANIATAU 
0 pleidlais dros Wrthod 
0 wedi atal 

FELLY RHODDWYD CANIATAD 
 

Tudalen 23



24

6 ADRODDIADAU GORFODAETH 

EITEM GORFODI
 
Cyfeir-rif:  ENF/2012/00418 
 
Lleoliad:  51 Ffordd Russell, y Rhyl  
 
Disgrifiad:  Arwydd hysbysebu heb ganiatad 
 
Datgelodd y Cynghorydd S Thomas fudd yn y cais hwn a gadawodd y Siambr 
yn ystod y drafodaeth a chymerodd y Cynghorydd J R Bartley at y 
Gadeiryddiaeth. 
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu, Paul Mead, fod arwydd arall wedi’i godi 
yn hysbysebu swyddi staff.  Ni roddwyd caniatad i’r arwydd hwn ychwaith.  
Eglurodd nad oedd angen arwydd mawr gan nad oedden nhw’n cael 
ymweliadau gan “bobl sy’n cerdded heibio”. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd J Butterfield eu bod yn awdurdodi Camau 
Gorfodi
Eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd J Bellis 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
17 pleidlais i awdurdodi Camau Gorfodi 
1 bleidlais i beidio ag awdurdodi Camau Gorfodi 
3 wedi atal 

PENDERFYNWYD rhoi awdurdod i ddechrau achos yn erbyn y person neu’r 
personau oedd yn gyfrifol os bydd y cwmni’n gwrthod neu’n methu â symud yr 
hysbyseb.

Tudalen 24



25

EITEM GORFODAETH 

Cyfeir-rif:  ENF/2012/00003 
 
Lleoliad:  ‘Hardly Nickels’, 9 Sgwâr Sant Pedr, Rhuthun  
 
Disgrifiad: Heb ganiatad, newid lliw cynllun lliw blaen Adeilad 

Rhestredig mewn Ardal Gadwraeth. 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd D I Smith ei bod yn well cael siop biws yn agored nag un 
wedi’i lliwio’n gywir ynghau.  Fodd bynnag, ni allai drafod unrhyw beth gyda 
pherchennog y siop gan fod yr eiddo’n awr ynghau. 
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd R L Feeley yn aelod o’r Gymdeithas Ddinesig oedd wedi 
rhoi’r Wobr Quayle i’r eiddo hwn ar gyfer ei adfer yn gydymdeimladol a theimlai 
petai pob eiddo mân werthu ar y sgwâr yn paentio’r blaen mewn lliwiau 
gwahanol, na fyddai’n gweddu i’r Ardal Gadwraeth. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Feeley a fyddai’n rhatach i’r Cyngor baentio’r eiddo 
ac anfon anfoneb i’r perchennog yn hytrach na dechrau achos o orfodaeth 
gyfreithiol. 
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adfywio a Rheoleiddio, 
Graham Boase, fod hyn yn erbyn Caniatad Adeilad Rhestredig ond petai 
awdurdod yn cael ei roi, byddai Swyddogion yn manteisio ar y cyfle i drafod 
ymhellach.  Byddai gan y perchnogion hawl i apelio ond yn y pen draw, mae 
gan y Cyngor b"er i ddefnyddio camau uniongyrchol ac anfon bil at y 
perchennog. 
 
Teimlai’r Cynghorydd J Bellis fod nifer o wahanol liwiau ar y stryd a theimlai ei 
bod yn well ceisio cadw’r eiddo’n agored. 
 
Cynigion: 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd R L Feeley y dylid awdurdodi Camau Gorfodi 

O’i roi i bleidlais: 
18 pleidlais i awdurdodi Camau Gorfodaeth 
3 pleidlais i beidio ag awdurdodi Camau Gorfodaeth 
0 wedi atal 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio’n awdurdodi’r gwasanaeth i roi 
Rhybudd Gorfodaeth o fewn Adran 38 y Ddeddf Cynllunio (Adeiladau 
Rhestredig ac Ardaloedd Cadwraeth) 1990, gyda chyfnod cydymffurfio o fis i 
drwsio, cynliwio a phaentio gyda phaent satin mewn lliw sy’n cyfateb i’r cynllun 
lliw blaenorol. 
 
Dechrau achos erlyn pan fydd unrhyw berson sydd wedi derbyn Rhybudd 
Gorfodaeth, yn methu â neu’n gwrthod cydymffurfio gyda’r gofynion hynny o 
fewn y cyfnod penodedig. 

Tudalen 25



26

RHAN II EITEM GYFRINACHOL 
 
7 Rhif y Cais:  . 03/2011/0696/OB  
Plas Derwen, Ffordd yr Abaty, Llangollen 
 
Cyflwyno er mwyn Addasu neu Gyflawni Goblygiad Cynllunio’n ymwneud â thâl 
o swm gohiriedig ar gyfer darparu tai fforddiadwy a mannau agored cyhoeddus. 
 
Dywedodd y Swyddog Cyfreithiol ei bod yn bosibl y gellid siarad yn gyhoeddus 
ar yr eitem hon yn Rhan 1 y cyfarfod.  Ondut, yn dilyn unrhyw gyflwyniadau 
dros neu yn erbyn y cais, gofynnir i’r wasg a’r cyhoedd (gan gynnwys 
ymgeiswyr, asiantau ac unrhyw gefnogwyr a gwrthwynebwyr) i adael y siambr i 
ganiatáu i’r Aelodau ystyried y cais yn gyfrinachol fel eitem Rhan II. 
 
SIARADWR CYHOEDDUS (YN ERBYN): 
SIMON COLLINGE:  Dywedodd 
 
“O’r dechrau, roedd y Cyngor Tref a thrigolion lleol wedi gwrthwynebu i faint yr 
adeilad mawreddog, fel y gallai rhai ddweud, anghydweddol hwn a hefyd y 
methiant i osod prif ddraeniad.  Fodd bynnag, dilynwyd y prosesau cynllunio 
democrataidd cywir a bu’n rhaid i ni dderbyn yr adeilad. 
 
O leiaf, teimlem y byddem yn cael rhywbeth yn ôl.  Roedd cytundeb 106 
blaenorol a wnaed gyda Gwasanaethau Moduro Bryn Melyd wedi talu £214,000 
at gynlluniau yn Llangollen 
 
Y Willows, 3 fflat fforddiadwy 
Pentredwr, 3 th! fforddiadwy ar gyfer pobl leol 
Un Homebuy ar gyfer pobl leol 
 
Mae datblygwyr Plas Derwen yn awr yn ceisio rhyddhad o’u tâl swm gohiriedig 
o £273,000 ar y sail nad yw’r cynllun bellach yn hyfyw i gynnal y tâl. 
 
Fodd bynnag, deallaf fod 19 o’r 20 Uned yn awr wedi’u gwerthu neu eu cadw 
ac y gallai’r datblygwyr gadw’r uned olaf ar gyfer eu defnydd eu hunain. 
 
O edrych yn fanylach ar y llofnodwyr, mae’r cytundeb yn dangos 
 
Bod Belgrave Homes yn ddatblygwr tai mawreddog a safonol ar gyfer bywyd 
cyfoes sydd, o 11 Chwefror, yn ôl Gwiriad Cwmnïau, â chyfanswm Asedau o 
£3,539,062. 
 
Mae Gwefan Bridging Finance Manchester yn ymffrostio’n agored “Short-term 
funder Bridging Finance today hailed a £150m lending milestone.  The 
Manchester-based business said it had doubled its lending from £75m in the 
past two years while other key players have struggled amid tough market 
conditions.” 
 
Tonic Leisure - trydydd llofnodwr - cwmni wedi’i ddiddymu 
 

Tudalen 26



27

Mae angen tai fforddiadwy ar fyrder yn Llangollen ac roedd y mentrwyr eiddo 
hyn yn cymryd risg ac ni ddylen ni orfod talu am eu colledion. 
 
Pryder mawr arall yw os byddan nhw’n osgoi anrhydeddu eu cytundeb, bydd yn 
gosod cynsail i ddatblygwyr eraill fydd yn hawlio caledi ariannol ar eu cytundeb 
adran 106 sydd heb ei dalu gan achosi colli arian sylweddol tuag at dai 
fforddiadwy’n genedlaethol. 
 
Mae’r Adran 106 hon yn Sêl Cytundeb Cyffredin 2 Mehefin 2006 rhwng DCC a’r 
llofnodwyr a awdurdodwyd ar ran y datblygwyr hyn – mae’n rhaid anrhydeddu 
hyn yn llawn.” 
 
GWAHARDD Y WASG A’R CYHOEDD 
PENDERFYNWYD gwahardd y Wasg a’r Cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod am weddill yr 
eitem fusnes hon ar y sail y gellid datgelu gwybodaeth anghyffredin fel y 
diffiniwyd ym Mharagraff 14 Rhan 4 Trefnlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, gofynnwyd i’r Aelodau bleidleisio i Ryddhau neu i beidio â 
Rhyddhau Goblygiad Adran 106 Mehefin 2006. 
 
O’i roi i bleidlais: 
1 bleidlais i Ryddhau 
20 pleidlais i BEIDIO â Rhyddhau 
0 wedi atal 

PENDERFYNWYD felly: 

1. Nad oedd yr Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol yn cytuno i ryddhau Goblygiad 
Adran 106 Mehefin 2006 rhag talu’r Symiau Gohiriedig Tai Fforddiadwy 
a Mannau Agored ym Mhlas Derwen, gan eu bod yn ystyried bod y 
Goblygiad yn dal i fod i bwrpas defnyddiol ac nad yw’r ddadl hyfywdra’n 
ystyriaeth arwyddocaol i gyfiawnhau rhyddhau. 

2. Bod y Swyddog Cyfreithiol yn cael awdurdod i gymryd camau cyfreithiol 
priodol i sicrhau cydymffurfio gydag amodau Goblygiad Adran 106. 

 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 1.30pm 

Tudalen 27



Tudalen 28

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 21st March 2012 

Planning applications

Item
No

Application No Location and Proposal Page
No

1

1 06/2011/1509/ 
PFT

Land east of Maesgwyn Ucha, at Tyn Y Celyn   
Gwyddelwern  Corwen 
Erection of a single 36.4m to hub, 46m to tip Wind Turbine 
and associated works. 

 1 

 2 07/2011/1260/PF  Former Byre at Cadwst Mawr Farm   Llandrillo  
Corwen 
Conversion of outbuilding into dwelling, installation of non-
mains drainage and construction of access drive to 
highway 

14

 3 19/2011/1499/PF  Land at Garreg Einws   Llanelidan  Ruthin 
Change of use of land for a holiday 'camping pod' site, 
installation of a new septic tank & associated works 

20

 4 24/2012/0086/PF  Bod Ynys   Rhewl  Ruthin 
Erection of 2 no. extensions to existing agricultural 
buildings (partly in retrospect) 

27

 5 24/2012/0127/PC  Bod Ynys   Rhewl  Ruthin 
Construction of a circular slurry store - amended details 
(retrospective application) 

31

 6 43/2012/0102/PF  Scala Cinema & Tourist Information Centre 45/47/49  
High Street   Prestatyn 
Change of use of shop (Class A1) at 45 High Street to 
café (Class A3) with formation of internal access into 
cinema complex and external seating area 

36

 7 44/2011/1500/PF  Nevis  Marsh Road Rhuddlan  Rhyl 
Demolition of existing single-storey dwelling and erection 
of new 4-bed two-storey dwelling 

39

 8 45/2011/1512/PF  Land rear of Sanlam Offices Derwen House  Ffordd 
Derwen   Rhyl 
Use of land and buildings for provision of a storage centre 
and siting of container units 

49

Eitem Agenda 5

Tudalen 29



 1

DMS
ITEM NO: 1

WARD NO: Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd / Gwyddelwern 

APPLICATION NO: 06/2011/1509/ PFT 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single 36.4m to hub, 46m to tip Wind Turbine and associated 
works. 

LOCATION: Land east of Maesgwyn Ucha, at Tyn Y Celyn   Gwyddelwern  Corwen 

APPLICANT: Mr Haydn  Roberts  

CONSTRAINTS: 
PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
GWYDDELWERN COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
“No objections to the wind turbine at Maes Gwyn Ucha, Gwyddelwern.” 

COUNTRYSIDE COUNCIL FOR WALES (CCW) 
No objection. The proposals will not affect, either directly or indirectly, any statutory 
protected sites of ecological, geological or geomorphologic interest. The application is 
1.5km from the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area AONB, however in view of the 
scale of the proposal, when considered in combination with other similar wind energy 
developments on adjacent land, CCW believe it is unlikely to have a significant adverse 
impacts on the AONB. 

However CCW have not considered possible impacts on all local and regional interests, 
therefore do not rule out the possibility of adverse impacts on such interests.  

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY  
No objection. Unable to make a full response to application, but standard advice 
applies.  

AIRBUS
No reply received. 

CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY 
No objection. CAA has does not have the resource to respond to individual planning 
application consultations and make reference to generic guidance relating to the impact 
of wind turbines upon aviation. 

MINISTRY OF DEFENCE 
No reply received at time of writing report (response is expected). 

Tudalen 30



 2

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty – Joint Advisory Committee  
No reply received. 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES 
           

TECHNICAL OFFICER (POLLUTION)  
No objection, subject to noise conditions being applied. 

BIODIVERSITY OFFICER
No objection, following receipt of additional information. 

LANDSCAPE CONSULTANT  
Response addresses:  

! The quality of the supporting statement. 

! The effect of the proposal upon the landscape character and views, particularly 
local impacts upon residents of Gwyddelwern and middle distant views from the 
road network. 

! How the proposal would relate to existing wind development in the locality, the 
merging pattern and implications on cumulative visual impacts. 

Response summary: 

! The supporting statement is overly general. No landscape and visual analysis or 
assessment has been submitted and the supporting statement does not 
demonstrate how the proposal has been positioned so as to minimise impacts 
upon landscape and visual sensitive receptors to any acceptable degree. 

! The existing 2 no. wind turbines at Tyn y Celyn have a negative influence upon 
existing local views. The proposal would have the appearance of extending the 
built form and industrial influence of wind development northwards along a rural 
skyline. 

! The proposal and the existing 2 no turbines would ‘read’ as one development, 
however the separation distance between the two would give a sense of 
dispersed and un-cohesive pattern of wind development. 

! Cumulative impact would have unacceptable adverse impact upon sensitive 
views from Garreg Lwyd and, to a slightly lesser degree, when viewed from the 
A494 on the northern approaches to Gwyddelwern. 

! Incremental growth in wind turbine development within such close proximity to a 
settlement would take on the characteristics and scale of a community scale wind 
development, without any benefits to the local community. 

! Offsetting the energy demand of a residential barn conversion does not justify the 
scale and impact of the proposed development. 

Recommends that the proposal is refused on the basis of likely adverse impacts, lack 
of supporting landscape and visual assessment and weak argument for need, contrary 
to UDP policies GEN6 and MEW 10.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
1 no. letter of representation (in support) received as a result of publicity from: 
Clwyd and Eleri Jones, Tan yr Efail, Gwyddelwern (letter) 

Summary of planning based representations: 
Visual impact:- the existing 2 no. turbines do not have a negative visual impact. 
Rural economy:- the agricultural sector need to be supported to ensure cleaner energy 
which in turn can support the rural economy. 

Tudalen 31



 3

Objections 
No objections received. 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   15/02/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

! timing of receipt of representations 

! delay in receipt of key consultation response(s) 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1 The proposal is to erect a single Endurance E-3120 50kW wind turbine on 
agricultural land located at Tyn y Celyn, Gwyddelwern. The turbine would be 
mounted on a 36.4m free standing galvanised steel monopole structure on a 
concrete base. The proposed three blade rotor has a diameter of 19.2m and 
the tip blade height is 46m.  

1.1.2 The turbine would be erected on a 7m x 7m foundation pad. The foundations 
would extend 16.5 metres in depth with HD bolt to take the weight of the 
turbine. An equipment cabin is also proposed to the south west of the base of 
the turbine. The cabin would have a footprint of 3 metres by 2.5 metres with a 
height of 2.5 metres. 

1.1.3 No new access arrangements are proposed; the existing Tyn y Celyn access 
track will be used to transport the turbine and associated infrastructure to site. 

1.1.4 The proposal is not a farm diversification scheme; the applicant  wishes to 
erect the turbine to produce sustainable energy for his barn conversion at 
Maes Gwyn Ucha, which gained planning permission in 2009, but is yet to be 
converted. The barn is approximately 370m to the North West of the site.  

1.1.5 The supporting information states the turbine will be connected to the barn 
conversion’s three phase supply once the barn has been converted. The 
applicant has received a grid connection offer from the distribution network 
operator and the barn conversion and the proposed turbine will be undertaken 
at the same time.  

1.1.6 The predicated annual energy output for the specified turbine in this location 
is estimated at approximately 150,000kWh per year. 

1.1.7 The application documents include 6 no. letters from private individuals 
outlining support from the proposal from: 

! T G Jones, Tyddyn Angharad, Corwen 

! Huw Jones, Hendre Bryn Cyffo, Gwyddelwern 

! Shaun Logan, Bryn Myfyr, Gwyddelwern 

! Arwel Rees Davies, Trewyn Fawr Farm, Carrog Road, Corwen 

! Rhys Jones, Gryn Hyfryd, Godrer Gaer, Corwen 

! Elwyn Parry, 20 Garreg Lwyd, Gwyddelwen 

1.1.8 The application submission includes the following documents: 

! Design and Access Statement (DAS) 

Tudalen 32



 4

! Endurance E-3120 wind turbine manufacture’s specification 

! Endurance E-3120 wind turbine generalised noise predications 

! Proposed elevations for turbine, equipment cabin and foundations 

! Noise contour plan 

! Shadow flicker plan 

! 4 no. zone of theoretical visibility (ZTV) plans 

! 8 no. photomontages and 4 no. wireframe views 

! Key visual receptors plan 

! Access plan 

! Site plan 

                
1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 The application site is improved agricultural land 2km to the north of the town 
of Corwen, and approximately 680 metres south east of the village of 
Gwyddelwern. The A494 trunk road runs through the village and the valley.  
There is a line of electricity pylons, approximately 30 metres high, running in 
an east –west direction with the nearest pylon being some 260 metres to the 
south east of the proposed turbine location. 

1.2.2 There are 2 no. Endurance E3120 50kW turbines with a tip height of 46m 
currently installed at Tyn y Celyn approximately 470 metres to the south east 
of the application site which were granted planning permission in 2011. 

1.2.3 Approximately 2.5km to the west is the Wern Ddu windfarm, which marks the 
eastern boundary of the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area where 
Welsh Government policy seeks to direct strategic scale windfarm 
development. Wern Ddu consists of 4 no. 2.3MW turbines which are 90 
metres in height which were allowed on Appeal in June 2007.  

1.2.4 The nearest residential properties which do not have an interest in the 
development are 380 metres to the west of the application site (Ty Nant and 
Bryn Eithin). 

1.2.5 The Denbighshire Landscape Strategy shows the application site lies within 
the Llanelidan and Gwyddelwern Hills LANDMAP Character Area which is 
defined as hill and scarp slopes with enclosed pasture. The Character Area 
comprises two groups of hills of similar character and quality visually 
separated by the main A494 (T), with distinctive rounded hills in places, and 
with two distinct ridges, with fields and hedgerows elsewhere. It mentions 
Cae'r Drewyn, a rounded hill on the southern edge of the area, which is a 
nationally important pre- historic hillfort. 

                 
1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1 In planning policy terms the site lies in the open countryside. It is some 1.5 
km to the north west of the boundary of the recently extended Clwydian 
Range Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).    

1.3.2 The easternmost boundary of the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area 
(SSA) lies approximately 2.5km to the west. In accordance with TAN8, large 
scale wind farm development in Wales should be directed to within SSA 
boundaries. The Clocaenog Forest SSA lies partly within Denbighshire 
County Council and partly within Conwy County Borough Council.     

1.3.3 A number of open access and common land areas lie within a 10 km radius of 
the site.    

Tudalen 33



 5

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The applicant obtained planning permission for a barn conversion at Maes 

Gwyn Ucha in 2009 and the applicant’s father obtained planning permission 
for 2 no. 50kW turbines at Tyn y Celyn in 2011. 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None
                   

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1 Officers are presenting this application to Planning Committee, as there are 
important issues of policy and principle to be considered.  

1.6.2 Officers are aware of the general support for wind energy development of this 
scale set out in Planning Policy Wales and TAN 8. However there is an 
absence of any local policy based criteria to determine the acceptability of 
individual turbine applications of the scale proposed and there is no clear 
definition of what constitutes a 'smaller' turbine; whilst a 50kW turbine is 
referred to as a small in terms of its generating capacity, physically it is a 
large prominent structure with a tip height of 46 metres. 

1.6.3 Whilst the Council has already granted planning permission for turbines of 
this scale within the County, this application differs from these applications as 
this proposal is to offset domestic energy consumption rather than being a 
farm diversification scheme. However the specified turbine is not within the 
domestic micro turbine scale.  

1.6.4 The application site is in close proximity to 2 no. operational 50kW wind 
turbines at Tyn y Celyn which may in turn give rise to cumulative impacts; 
again this is a factor which has not arisen when other wind turbine 
applications of this scale have been determined. 

1.6.5 A negative EIA screening opinion for 1 no. 55kW turbine at Tyn y Celyn was 
issued by the Council in November 2011. 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1.1 06/2009/0712 conversion of 2 no. agricultural buildings to form 1 no. dwelling. 

at Maes Gwyn Ucha, Gwyddelwern. Granted 01/09/09.  

2.1.2 06/2011/0249 erection of 2 no. 55kW wind turbines at Tyn y Celyn, 
Gwyddelwern. Granted 05/07/11 (applicant for this scheme was the 
applicant’s father) 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
3.1 The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 

DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3
rd

 July 2002) 
Policy STRAT 1 General 
Policy STRAT 2 Energy 
Policy STRAT5 Design 
Policy STRAT 7 Environment 
Policy GEN 3 Development Outside Development Boundaries 
Policy GEN 6 Development Control Requirements 
Policy ENV 1 Protection of the Natural Environment  
Policy ENV 2 Development affecting the AONB/AOB 
Policy ENV 6 Species Protection 

Tudalen 34



 6

Policy MEW 8 Renewable Energy 
Policy MEW 10 Wind Power 

GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (PPW Edition 4, February 2011)  
TAN 8 Planning for Renewable Energy (2005) 
TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
TAN 11 Noise (1997) 

WELSH GOVERNMENT PRACTICE GUIDANCE 
Planning Implications Of Renewable And Low Carbon Energy (Practice Guidance 
2011)  

OTHER DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL DOCUMENTS 
Denbighshire Landscape Strategy (2003) 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Context for the development 
4.1.3 Landscape and visual impact, including cumulative effects of / with other wind 

turbines 
4.1.4 Biodiversity and nature conservation
4.1.5 Noise and amenity 
4.1.6 Aviation 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.2.1 Principle

Welsh Government policy and guidance
The UK is subject to the EU Renewable Energy Directive, which includes a target of 
generating 15% of the UK’s total energy demand from renewable energy sources by 
2020. Planning Policy Wales (PPW) reaffirms UK and national energy strategies and 
the Welsh Government is committed to playing its part. PPW refers to the Welsh 
Government’s Energy Policy Statement (2010) and recognises that wind energy 
generation remains the most commercially viable form of renewable energy in Wales. 
As illustrated in PPW, the total capacity for energy generation from onshore wind by 
2020/2025 is estimated at 2GW.  

For planning purposes, PPW defines the following renewable and low carbon energy 
scales, which is of relevance to the application before Committee: 

           Scale of development    Threshold ( Electricity and heat)  
Strategic Over 25 MW for onshore wind and over 50 MW 

for all other technologies 

Local Authority - Wide  Between 5MW and 25 MW for onshore wind 
and between 5 MW and 50MW for all other 
technologies 

Sub local authority  Between  50kW and 5MW 
Micro  Below 50kW  

This application therefore falls within the ‘sub local authority’ scale of development in 
PPW.

Tudalen 35



 7

Sub local-authority scale renewable energy projects are applicable in all parts of 
Wales subject to the assessment of site specific impacts. 

TAN 8 supplements PPW and provides technical advice and guidance on renewable 
energy projects. There have been some policy and legislative changes since the 
publication and TAN8 and it should therefore be read alongside PPW Edition 4 . 

TAN 8 remains a key document in respect of wind turbine proposals. It introduced the 
principle of spatial planning for the delivery of energy policy. TAN 8 makes reference 
to smaller scale (less than 5MW) schemes in para. 2.11 - 2.14, however this puts the 
onus on local planning authorities to define what is meant by ‘small scale’ and 
‘community based’ wind power schemes. It refers to the need for local planning 
authorities to consider the cumulative impact of smaller schemes in areas outside of 
the defined Strategic Search Areas and mentions the balance to be struck between 
the desirability of renewable energy and landscape protection. Whilst that balance 
should not result in severe restriction on the development of wind power capacity, 
TAN8 acknowledges there is a case for avoiding a situation where wind turbines 
spread across the whole of a county. 

The Welsh Government Practice Guidance: Planning Implications of Renewable and 
Low Carbon Energy (2011) sets out how local planning authorities can identify the 
planning implications for renewable and low carbon development, and in relation to 
wind energy a total of 13 issues are listed, with relevant assessments to be 
undertaken when considering proposals. 

Chapter 15 relates to cumulative effects, highlighting that these must also be taken 
into account. It defines cumulative effect as ‘ where more than one renewable energy 
scheme is proposed by one or more developers or where a single scheme is 
proposed in an area with existing schemes, the combined effect of all schemes taken 
together is known as the ‘cumulative effect’ (para. 15.1). The Guidance mentions that 
potential  cumulative effects of renewable energy developments could impact on 
landscape and visual amenity; viability of bird populations; ecological features; and 
noise levels.    

Whilst the proposal is separate from the existing 2 no. operational wind turbines at 
Tyn y Celyn, the application site is in close proximity to these, and together they may 
appear as a cluster of smaller turbines which may in turn give rise to cumulative 
visual and landscape impacts. This is addressed further in the landscape and visual 
impact section of this report (4.2.2). 

Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan Policies
The strategic policies contained in the UDP promote a sustainable approach to 
development, with STRAT 2 supporting the principle of generating energy from 
renewable sources  so far as they are compatible with the Plan’s policies. 

UDP Policy MEW 8 supports renewable energy development in principle, provided 
that development proposals do not give rise to unacceptable effects on the 
environmental quality of the locality. Policy MEW 10 is a criteria based policy which 
specifically deals with wind power developments. It states that wind turbine 
development will be permitted subject to compliance with the 10 no. criteria. 

The most relevant criteria in this instance as MEW iii) the proposal will not 
unacceptably harm the character and appearance of the landscape; iv) the proposal 
does not lead to unacceptable noise levels; v) there is no unacceptable risk or 
nuisance to the public arising from wind turbines; vii) the proposal would not lead to 
an unacceptable cumulative visual impact; viii) the proposal does not cause 

Tudalen 36



 8

unacceptable harm to the enjoyment of the landscape; and x) there is no 
unacceptable effect on nature conservation interests. 

Policy GEN 6 refers to general development control requirements and applies to most 
developments. The criteria of most relevance are the ii) relating to the effect of 
development on the form and character of surrounding landscape; iii) the effect on 
prominent views into, out of, or across any area of open countryside; iv) incorporating 
existing landscape features and taking account of site contours and changes in levels 
and avoids prominent skylines; and v) the impact on residential amenity. 

Policy ENV 1 relates to the protection of the natural environment. It states 
“Development must be designed to maintain or enhance the landscape character of 
the countryside and biodiversity of the natural environment”. Policy ENV 6 is the 
detailed policy relating to species protection, which seeks to ensure that development 
which would unacceptably harm species given special protection by law are not 
permitted.

Taken together, the policies contained in the UDP provide support in principle for 
renewable energy development subject to the detailed assessment of localised 
impacts.  

However, it is relevant to note that as the UDP was adopted in 2002, its contents 
predate TAN 8 and more recent Welsh Government policy statements relating to 
energy development, and inevitably contains no guidance which is specific to 
‘smaller’ wind energy developments, nor does it provide a consistent basis against 
which wind turbine development of this scale will be assessed, taking into account the 
cumulative impact and spread of wind turbine development of varying scales 
throughout the county. 

Ultimately Officers take the simplistic view that in the absence of any up to date and 
specific local level guidance on the matter of wind energy applications of this scale, it 
is incumbent on the Council to deal with the proposal in accordance with the statutory 
requirements in the Planning/ Planning and Compensation Act which is to determine 
applications in accordance with the current policies of the adopted development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The following sections of the report 
therefore weigh the merits of the application against the policies of the Unitary 
Development Plan and then in respect of the other material considerations including 
current WAG policy and guidance in PPW and TAN 8. 

4.2.2 Context for the development
When determining planning applications for renewable energy development, PPW 
requires local planning authorities take into account a range of factors including the 
contribution a proposal will play in meeting identified national, UK and European 
targets and potential for renewable energy generation, including the contribution to 
cutting greenhouse gas emissions. 

Therefore the benefits of the scheme in terms of reducing the carbon footprint of the 
proposed barn conversion and the contribution to renewable energy generation 
targets need to be carefully weighed against any adverse impacts associated with 
this development.  

The applicant wishes to install the turbine to provide renewable electricity for the 
consented barn conversion, which will comprise of a single dwelling once converted. 
The current application therefore differs from previous planning applications for 50kW 
turbines determined by the Council as is does not relate to a farm enterprise or rural 
business; it cannot therefore be considered a farm diversification scheme. 

Tudalen 37



 9

In assessing the application, it seems relevant therefore to consider whether or not 
this is an appropriate scale of development for domestic purposes. The agent has 
provided additional information to confirm the predicted energy output from the 
proposed turbine, and has indicated a 50kW turbine in this location would generate 
approximately 150,000kWh of electricity per year. 

Based on Ofgem data (Typical domestic energy consumption figures Factsheet 96 
dated 18/01/11) the average electricity consumption of a residential property is 
3,300kWh per annum. 

Using this figure, the proposed turbine would generate approximately 45 times more 
electricity than an average residential property would consume in a year. This figure 
has been corroborated by the agent. 

Furthermore, the Ofgem data states that the medium electricity bill based on a 
consumption of 3,300kWh a year is £424. Wind turbines under 5MW are eligible for 
the Feed in Tariff, which is a government backed initiative which provides regular 
payments for every kWh of electricity generated from renewable energy sources. The 
current Feed in Tariff payment for a wind turbine of this scale is set at 25.3p per kWh; 
based on the estimated generation figure above, this proposal would generate around 
£37,950 per annum from the Feed in Tariff (this only relates to the generation tariff 
payment; an additional export tariff of 3.1p will also be paid for every kWh of 
electricity exported to the grid). This is more than 89 times the average electricity bill 
for a residential property.  

From this assessment, it is clear that the turbine has not been sized to offset the 
energy demand of a residential property as the majority of the energy generated will 
be exported to the grid. Respectfully, it is not considered the scheme can be referred 
to as a domestic scale turbine and the proposal is more akin to a commercial venture 
than a domestic carbon offsetting project. 

4.2.3 Impact on landscape and visual amenity, including cumulative implications.

Policy and Guidance
Detailed Unitary Development Plan policies relevant to the visual and landscape 
impact associated with wind energy development are policy GEN 6 and policy MEW 
10.

GEN 6 requires consideration of ii) the effect of development on the form and 
character of surrounding landscape; iii) the effect on prominent views into, out of, or 
across any area of open countryside;  iv) incorporating existing landscape features 
and taking account of site contours and changes in levels and avoids prominent 
skylines; and v) the impact on residential amenity.  

MEW 10 (iii) requires that proposals do not unacceptably harm the character and 
appearance of the landscape, (viii) requires that proposals would not lead to an 
unacceptable cumulative visual impact in an area where zones of visibility (with other 
wind turbine development) overlap, and that particular attention will be paid to the 
potential proliferation of such developments in any one area; and vii) the proposal 
does not cause unacceptable harm to the enjoyment of the landscape.  

The Denbighshire Landscape Strategy is based on the LANDMAP study, which 
provides useful background material on the essential characteristics and quality of 
the landscape of the County.  The application site lies within the “Llanelidan and 
Gwyddelwern Hills” Character Area  where the Visual and Sensory evaluation is 
identified as ‘high’.  

Tudalen 38



 10

The supporting information accompanying the application contains a brief landscape 
impact assessment which is supported by 4 no. zone of theoretical visibility (ZTV) 
plans, 8 no. photomontages and 4 no. wireframe views and a plan showing the key 
visual receptors used to inform the assessment.  

The Council’s Landscape Consultant considers the supporting statement to be overly 
general in its discussion of the landscape and visual issues and there are a number 
of assertions made which are not substantiated by a clearly presented assessment.  
Whilst it is acknowledged that there may be capacity for further wind development 
within the area, no landscape and visual analysis and assessment has been 
submitted to demonstrate that the proposal is the best option for minimising impacts 
upon sensitive landscape and visual receptors to any acceptable degree.  

An extract from the Denbighshire Landscape Strategy is included, but there is no 
suggestion of how the development would positively address the landscape 
character, conservation and enhancement requirements of the area. In the 
Landscape Consultant’s opinion, the submission therefore fails to address the 
landscape context.  

Significantly, in carrying out his own landscape and visual assessment of the 
proposal, the Council’s Landscape Consultant  concluded:   

“2 wind turbines (planning application 06/2011/0249) are operational and have a 
negative influence upon existing local views from Garreg Lwyd, Gwyddelwern, due to 
their very close proximity to settlement and skyline location, its scale and visual 
disturbance from rotor movement. The proposal would be a prominent built feature in 
its own right and have the appearance of extending the built form and industrial 
influence of wind development northwards along a rural skyline. The common 
characteristics between developments in regard to ridgeline siting and turbine choice 
would make the existing and proposed turbines ‘read’ as one development, however 
the separation distance between the two would give the sense of a dispersed and un-
cohesive emerging pattern of wind development. I consider the cumulative impact of 
wind development would have an unacceptable adverse impact upon sensitive views 
from the residential area at Garreg Lwyd for the lifetime of the development” and “If
the proposal were to be implemented, incremental growth in wind development within 
such close proximity to settlement would take on the characteristics and scale of a 
community wind development, but without any benefits to the local community”.

PPW and TAN 8 provide the strategic policy framework for assessing wind energy 
development and contain some specific guidance on the detailed consideration of 
landscape and visual impact to assist local planning authorities determine planning 
applications. TAN 8 Annex D (para 8.1 – 8.6) provides supplemental information on 
cumulative landscape and visual impact. It states that cumulative effects are those 
which occur, or may occur, as a result of more than one wind farm project being 
constructed and emphasis that it is important to recognise that cumulative effects 
consist of both those upon visual amenity as well as effects on the landscape. 

In relation to assessing cumulative landscape impacts, TAN8 clarifies the landscape 
objectives for different parts of Wales. Outside of designated Strategic Search Areas, 
the implicit objective is to maintain the landscape character i.e. no significant change 
in landscape character from wind turbine development. 

In concluding on the issue of landscape and visual impact, and having regard to the 
comments of the Landscape Consultant, it is likely that the proposal will give rise to 
adverse cumulative visual impacts, and these have not been sufficiently addressed in 

Tudalen 39



 11

the supporting landscape and visual assessment. Officers therefore consider the 
proposal does not accord with UDP policies GEN6 i), iii), v) and MEW10 vii), viii). 

4.2.4 Biodiversity and nature conservation
The general requirement to consider the impact of development on biodiversity 
interests is set out in PPW Chapter 5, TAN 5, UDP policies STRAT 1, STRAT 7, GEN 
6 and ENV 6 and SPG 18. Specific to wind turbine development is policy MEW 10 
criterion x) which states that wind turbine development will be permitted provided that 
‘There is no unacceptable effect on nature conservation.’ It is therefore incumbent on  
local planning authorities to ensure wind turbine development does not give rise to 
any adverse negative impacts on biodiversity interests.  

The application site is improved agricultural land and is outside of any statutory or 
local nature conservation designation. The initial site survey referred to in the Ecology 
and Nature chapter of the Design and Access Statement found that no features of 
wildlife interest were identified in the immediate vicinity of the site. Reference is made 
to guidance in respect of birds and bats in general terms.  

The supporting information also indicates that there is no evidence of bat activity in 
the vicinity of the development, however to protect bat species, best practice 
guidance recommends wind turbines are set away from trees and hedgerows and a 
buffer zone of 50m is applied in all cases. 

In terms of hedges, the only boundary within 50 metres is some 26 metres away from 
the proposed application site. However, this boundary is a fence with a small number 
of thorn bushes. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer agrees that bushes along a fence 
does not constitute a hedgerow and therefore is less likely to be used as a flight line 
by bats. 

Both CCW and the Council have expressed no biodiversity objection to the proposal, 
and it is reasonable to conclude that the proposal would not have any adverse 
impacts on biodiversity and nature conservation interests, and therefore does not 
conflict with policy ENV 6 and MEW 10 criterion x) 

4.2.5 Noise and amenity
Policy GEN 6 and MEW 10 seek to ensure development does not impact on 
residential amenity. The latter requires that particular consideration has to be given to 
noise  and shadow flicker. 

The nearest residential properties are 380 metres away from the application site. 

TAN 11 relates to the assessment of noise in relation to development proposals. The 
general guidance is that local planning authorities should ensure noise-generating 
development does not cause an unacceptable degree of disturbance, but in some 
instances it may be acceptable to allow noise-generating activities near to noise 
sensitive receptors. 

ETSU-R-97 is industry standard for the Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind 
Farms. It is important to ensure that predicated operational noise levels fall within the 
established limits of ETSU-R-97. The guidance sets out indicative noise levels 
thought to offer a reasonable degree of protection to wind farm neighbours, without 
placing unreasonable restrictions on the development. The levels are set relative to 
background noise limits, rather than absolute limits, with separate limits for day-time 
and night-time. They are presented in a manner that makes them suitable for noise 
related planning conditions. 

Tudalen 40



 12

For single turbines ESTU-R-97 proposes that a simplified noise condition may be 
suitable and recommends that noise is limited to an LA90,10min of 35dB (A) up to wind 
speed of 10m/s at 10m height and considers that this condition alone would offer 
sufficient protection of amenity, and background noise surveys would be 
unnecessary. 

The Manufacturer’s noise emission report for the Endurance E-3120 wind turbine has 
been supplied as additional supporting information with the application. This report 
demonstrates that the 35bB level can be achieved at a distance of 250m or more. 

The Council’s Technical Officer (Pollution) is satisfied that planning conditions can be 
imposed to control noise levels to ensure the noise generated by the wind turbine 
would not have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of neighbouring dwellings. 

The incidence of shadow flicker depends on the position of the sun in the sky. It only 
occurs at certain times and tends to only affect nearby buildings within 130 degrees 
either side of north which are within 10 rotor diameters of a turbine. The likelihood of 
shadow flicker occurring and the duration of such an effect depends on a range of 
factors, including the time of the year, the size of the turbine, the direction and speed 
of the wind and the relative cloud cover.  

The Design and Access Statement contains a chapter on shadow flicker and is 
accompanied by a shadow flicker plan. The proposed rotor diameter is approx. 20m 
which would give a shadow flicker separation distance of 200 metres. The Statement 
concludes that as there are no dwellings within 200 metres of the turbine, shadow 
flicker analysis was not required as the size and siting of the turbine in relation to the 
neighbouring dwellings is such that it is unlikely to result in shadow flicker. As a 
precautionary principle, this matter can however be covered by condition in the event 
of a permission being granted. 

Subject to the inclusion of conditions, it is reasonable to conclude that the proposal 
would comply with policy GEN 6 criterion v) and MEW 10 criterion iv) and v). 

4.2.6 Communication and aviation
In certain locations wind turbines can affect communication and aviation infrastructure 
which may also need to be addressed. Airbus, who operate Hawarden Airport, the 
Civil Aviation Authority and the Ministry of Defence have been consulted on this 
application. 

At the time of writing the report, no consultation response has been received from the 
aviation bodies, however the MOD intend to submit a formal response to the 
consultation. In the absence of a formal objection to the proposal, Officers are 
satisfied that the proposal will not have any adverse effects on communication and 
aviation infrastructure. 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 

5.1 The report sets out a number of considerations officers suggest are relevant to the 
determination of this application. As with a number of wind energy developments, 
inevitably there will be factors that weigh against and in favour of the grant of 
planning permission.  

5.2 The purpose of the proposal is to offset the energy demand of an individual dwelling 
(barn conversion granted consent in 2009 ref. 06/2009/0712). However in accordance 
with PPW and the Welsh Government’s Practice Guidance, a 50kW turbine would be 
classed as ‘sub-local authority’ or ‘medium’ scale development. A turbine of the scale 
proposed in this location would generate approximately 45 times more electricity than 

Tudalen 41



 13

the average annual electricity demand of a typical residential property in the UK. It is 
therefore considered that the scale of the development is disproportionate to the 
energy demand of the building it seeks to offset and the turbine cannot be considered 
a ‘domestic’ turbine. 

5.3 The application is for a 46 metre high 50kW turbine is some 500 metres away from 
the existing 2 no. 50kW wind turbines already installed at Tyn y Celyn. Whilst this is a 
separate application, the existing and proposed turbines would ‘read’ as one 
development, however there are some reservations over the landscape and visual 
impact and the separation distance between the two would give the sense of a 
dispersed and un-cohesive emerging pattern of wind development. 

5.4 The development would give rise to cumulative impacts and have an unacceptable 
adverse impact upon sensitive views from the residential area at Garreg Lwyd for the 
lifetime of the development and would lead to further incremental growth in wind 
development in close proximity to a settlement, which would take on the 
characteristics of a community scale wind energy development.

5.5 The supporting statement is considered to be overly general in its discussion of the 
landscape and visual issues and there are a number of assertions made which are 
not substantiated by a clearly presented assessment. No landscape and visual 
analysis and assessment has been submitted to demonstrate that the proposal is the 
best option for minimising impacts upon sensitive landscape and visual receptors to 
any acceptable degree, and the submission does not address how the development 
would positively address the landscape character, conservation and enhancement 
requirements of the area. The submission therefore fails to address the landscape 
context.

5.6 Officers acknowledge the overarching national and local planning policy context 
which supports  renewable energy development in principle and recognise the 
benefits of the scheme in terms of reducing the carbon footprint of the proposed barn 
conversion. However it is felt that the scale of the development is disproportionate to 
the energy demand of the building it seeks to offset and there is not sufficient 
justification in this instance to outweigh the adverse cumulative landscape and visual 
impacts associated with this development. Officers’ also consider that a grant of 
planning consent for this proposal may establish a precedent for ‘sub-local authority’ 
scale renewable energy development in relation to domestic properties. 

RECOMMENDATION: - REFUSE for the following reasons:-

1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the erection of a 46 metre high 
50kW tubine in a high quality rural landscape would have unacceptable landscape and visual 
impacts, and taking into account the existing wind turbine development would give rise to 
unnacceptable cumulative effects leading to a significant change in the local landscape 
character as a result of wind energy development. It would also lead to a potential precedent 
for similar scale wind turbine development in relation to domestic properties. The potential 
benefits of increased renewable energy generation are not considered to outweigh the 
national and local policy objectives which seek to protect the local landscape and visual 
amenity. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to Denbighshire Unitary Development 
Plan policies STRAT 7, GEN 6, ENV1, MEW 8 and MEW 10, and the principles set out in 
TAN 8  (para. 2.10 - 2.13) and PPW Edition 4 (para.12.10). 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

None

Tudalen 42



 14

EOC
ITEM NO: 2

WARD NO: Llandrillo

APPLICATION NO: 07/2011/1260/ PF 

PROPOSAL: Conversion of outbuilding into dwelling, installation of non-mains drainage 
and construction of access drive to highway 

LOCATION:  Former Byre at Cadwst Mawr Farm   Llandrillo  Corwen 

APPLICANT: Mr A  Jones  

CONSTRAINTS: C2 Flood Zone 
Main River 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Member request for referral to Committee. 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
LLANDRILLO COMMUNITY COUNCIL-  
No reply received at time of drafting report.  

AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE- 
“The site is some distance outside the proposed AONB extension area and in this 
context the JAC has no observations  to make on the application”. 

COUNTRYSIDE COUNCIL FOR WALES (CCW)-  
Satisfied with principle of conversion. Response awaited  to re-consultation on updated 
Biodiversity information at time of drafting report. 

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAELOGICAL TRUST (CPAT)-  
Satisfied with principle of conversion. Response awaited to re-consultation on updated 
information at time of drafting report. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY WALES- 
No objection. 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEE RESPONSES- 
BIODIVERSITY OFFICER- 
No objection, subject to notes to Applicant.  

BUILDING CONTROL OFFICER-  
Building is capable of conversion (see assessment in Section 4 of report). 

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE- 

Tudalen 43



 15

No objection. 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   18/12/11

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

! additional information required from applicant 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is for the conversion and part reconstruction of an outbuilding at 

Cadwst Mawr Farm, to form a three bedroom dwelling. Alterations proposed 
to facilitate the creation of the dwelling would be the re-roofing of all of the 
building, reconstruction of some of the walls from foundation level, creation of 
some new openings in the retained section, and internal remodelling to create 
a split level dwelling.   The plans at the front of the report illustrate the 
detailing of the scheme, which would result in a building measuring some 
21.5m x 6.2m (133 square metres) footprint. 

1.1.2 It is proposed that the area around the building would be enclosed by a native 
hedgerow to provide amenity space and parking and turning for the unit. 
Vehicular access is proposed via a former track, which runs from the minor 
road  leading south from Llandrillo, for approximately 280 metres to the 
proposed dwelling.  

1.1.3 The application is accompanied by a structural report and design and access 
statement (DAS), which comments on the adequacy and suitability of the 
outbuilding for the scheme of conversion. An ecological survey has also been 
submitted in support of the application. 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The former byre is a section of stone building with a corrugated roof 

measuring some 9.5m x 6.2m, and a section to the east measuring some 
12m x 6.2m where only parts of the original wall structure remain and the roof 
structure has long disappeared.  

1.2.2 The byre is sited in an isolated location 200 metres south of the Cadwst Mawr 
agricultural complex, which is located to the south of Llandrillo. 

1.2.3 Access to the site is off a minor road which runs from Llandrillo. The site is 
approximately 2.5 kilometres from Llandrillo village.  

1.2.4 It is an elevated site on the south east side of Cwm Pennant. The land slopes 
up from the river Ceidiog to the site.   

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside, outside of any defined 

development boundary. The area is designated as an area of outstanding 
beauty (AOB) in the Unitary Development Plan.  

1.4 Relevant planning history

Tudalen 44



 16

1.4.1 There is no planning history on this site.  

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Additional ecological information has been sought on the request of CCW 

following the initial submission.  

1.5.2 A re-design of the access track has been sought on the request of CPAT 
following the initial submission.  

1.5.3 A tree survey was sought on the request of the Tree Officer following the 
initial submission. 

1.5.4 Additional structural information has been sought by the Case Officer 
following the site visit, to help clarify the extent of new build/reconstruction 
involved in the scheme.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application is being considered by Planning Committee on the request of 

the councillor Cefyn Williams, to allow full assessment of the planning policy 
issues.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002) 

Policy GEN 3 – Development outside development boundaries 
Policy GEN 6 – Development Control Requirements 
Policy HSG 9 – Residential conversion of rural buildings to dwellings 
Policy ENV 6 – Species Protection 

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note No. 16 – Conversion of Rural Buildings 

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales Edition 4

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact 
4.1.3 Residential Amenity 
4.1.4 Highways Safety 
4.1.5 Ecological Impact

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Policy GEN 3 relates to development outside development boundaries and 
states that residential development will not be permitted apart from some 
exceptions, the most relevant being the conversion and reuse of vacant rural 
buildings.

Policy HSG 9 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan relates specifically to 

Tudalen 45



 17

the residential conversion of rural buildings to dwellings. This policy allows for 
the conversion of rural buildings subject to a number of tests including 
whether the building is structurally sound and capable of conversion without 
major or complete reconstruction.  

SPG 16 provides further advice on these requirements and states that 
buildings should not be so derelict that they could only be brought into use by 
substantial rebuilding. 

In terms of Policy HSG 9 a statement submitted with the application refers to 
the business use test, which is no longer required by the Local Planning 
Authority, but this mentions the unsuitability of the building for employment 
uses. 

Test i) of HSG 9 requires that a building must be capable of conversion 
without major or complete reconstruction. The supporting text of the policy 
goes on to say that buildings that have become so derelict that they would be 
brought back into use only by major or complete reconstruction do not fall 
within the scope of the policy. 

The Design and Access Statement (DAS) refers to the ‘restoration’ of the 
west wing of the building, (the remaining intact section), and states restoration 
of 75 square metres of the (remaining east wing) footprint is proposed as well 
as re-roofing of the whole building. The Agent has been approached to 
provide a plan to show how much re-build would actually be involved in the 
proposal, and this shows reconstruction of elements of the east wing walls on 
half of the southern elevation and all of the walls of the eastern elevation. 
However, in Officers’ opinion there remains some doubt whether the wall 
forming the north elevation is capable of use in a new structure, considering 
the land levels and structural quality of the remaining wall.  Although 
clarification of this element of the proposal has been sought from the Agents it 
has not been forthcoming. 

As Members may appreciate, Officers can only base a recommendation on 
the submitted details.  In this case there are questions to address over the 
extent of reconstruction.  Based on the original information provided in the 
DAS, half of the building would require ‘restoration’.  The additional 
information suggests less would be rebuilt, although it is not clear how the 
remainder of the structure is capable of conversion.  Officers’ opinion is that it 
is likely that the entire eastern section of the proposed dwelling would have to 
be built up from new foundations, i.e. an area of 12m x 6.2m, which would 
represent 56% of the footprint of the entire dwelling.  The whole roof structure 
will also be new, and this would double the length of the existing roof. Having 
regard to this element of the scheme, it is not considered that the proposal 
meets the tests in Policy HSG 9 (i).  The remaining key tests of HSG 9 are 
reviewed in the planning considerations considered below: 

4.2.2 Impact on visual amenity
The main policy that refers to scale, landscape and visual impact is GEN 6.  
Policy HSG 9 also requires assessment of effect on the character of the 
building and the countryside in terms of visual appearance.

The application proposes to redevelop the building in a similar scale and form 
as the original, albeit a form that has been lost since the removal of the roof of 
the majority of the outbuilding in the 1960’s-70’s. The proposed building 
would be a relatively simple structure with slate roof.  

Tudalen 46



 18

The visual/landscape impact of the proposals is a concern of Officers. It is 
considered that a dwelling and associated residential activities in a remote 
rural location would impact on the character and appearance of the 
countryside.  Although it could be argued that the building could be used 
more intensively for agriculture, it is considered the cumulative impact of the 
resulting conversion, including the access track, residential curtilage and level 
of activity would have significantly greater long term effect on the character of 
a tranquil valley in the Area of Outstanding Beauty.  

It is considered that the proposal would have a potentially unacceptable 
impact on the character and appearance of the open countryside, and would 
be contrary to criterion iii) of policy HSG 9.  

4.2.3 Residential Amenity
Policy GEN 6 sets specific tests to be applied to amenity of impacts of 
development; Policy HSG 9 (iv) also requires assessment of amenity impacts 
and standards. 

The proposed dwelling would be located in an isolated location with no 
immediate neighbours. A formal amenity area of some 150 sq.m. is proposed 
for the dwelling.  

Having regard to the detailing, it is considered the proposal would not raise 
any conflicts with policy in terms of the amenity of existing or proposed 
occupiers hence would be compliant with the aforementioned policies.  

4.2.4 Highways
Policy GEN 6 criteria (vii) permits development where it does not have an 
unacceptable effect on the local highway network. 

The application proposes access off a former track from the minor road. 
Parking will be provided on site for the dwelling.  

This access road and track is deemed acceptable for the conversion scheme 
and Highway Officers have not objected to the proposal.  It is considered the 
proposal would not lead to any conflicts with highway safety. 

4.2.5 Ecological impact

Policy ENV 6 seeks to ensure that wildlife and bio-diversity are not negatively 
affected as a result of development.  

A Bat and Bird survey has been submitted with the application. The survey 
found no evidence of bats of birds in the building. 

It is considered the proposal would not conflict with the policy criteria of ENP 
2.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 In considering the merits of the application, Officers are aware of recent decisions at 

Planning Committee on conversion proposals.  However, with respect to this 
background, it is not considered the circumstances can be directly compared to those 
pertaining to this proposal, since the recent cases have involved situations where 
works on outbuildings have been carried out prior to submission of applications, and 
buildings have been subject to previous part implemented permissions, where some 
works of reconstruction have been undertaken prior to submission of fresh 
applications.

Tudalen 47



 19

5.2 In simple factual terms the level of rebuild involved here is likely to be well over half of 
the proposed structure, which officers respectfully suggest is in conflict with Policy 
HSG 9 (test i), being major reconstruction of a semi-derelict building.  There are also 
landscape/visual impacts to address which lead weight to these concerns. 

5.3 Whilst it is acknowledged that the scheme of conversion would prevent the former 
byre falling into total dereliction, and the Agent has advised that the building could be 
used by the Applicant’s son who currently lives in the local area, it is suggested 
neither argument should be accorded significant weight in balancing considerations 
relevant to planning policy. 

5.4 It is the opinion of Officers that, with respect to recent decisions on other ‘conversion’ 
proposals, that on balance, the proposal is in conflict with key elements of the 
relevant policies, and is therefore recommended for refusal. 

RECOMMENDATION: - REFUSE for the following reason:- 

1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that substantial renovation and 
reconstruction works will be required in order to achieve the proposed conversion, as sections 
of the building are not structurally sound or capable of conversion without major or complete 
reconstruction. The resulting building, curtilage and access track would also have a 
significantly greater landscape impact than the existing building. Accordingly, the proposal is 
considered contrary to Policies GEN 3 and key tests of HSG 9 of the Denbighshire Unitary 
Development Plan, the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance 16 'Conversion 
of Rural Buildings' and advice as contained in Planning Policy Wales Edition 4. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

None

Tudalen 48



 20

DXR
ITEM NO: 

WARD NO: Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd / Gwyddelwern 

APPLICATION NO: 19/2011/1499/ PF 

PROPOSAL: Change of use of land for a holiday 'camping pod' site, installation of a new 
septic tank & associated works 

LOCATION: Land at Garreg Einws   Llanelidan  Ruthin 

APPLICANT: Mr Raymond & Gareth  Powell  

CONSTRAINTS: PROW  
PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - Yes 
Press Notice - Yes  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
LLANELIDAN COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
“No objection” 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY 
No objection. Application has low environmental risk. 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES 
HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
In relation to highways, no objection raised subject to a condition requiring the works 
for car parking and turning to be completed prior to occupation and retained thereafter. 
In relation to the Public Right of Way, (PROW) no objection raised. 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Representations received from: 
C. & R. Davey, Ffynnon-y-Milgi, Llanelidan (e-mail) 

Summary of planning based representations: 
No objection, however concerns raised about the following; 
Impact on highway network - Local highway network not in a condition to serve the 
proposed development 

Other issues raised
Impact on water supply
Concerned about sufficient water supply. 

Precedent
First step to larger development. 

Tudalen 49



 21

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   14/02/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

! To allow the application to be reported to Planning Committee 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is for the change of use of land to a holiday camping pod site, 

involving the siting of 4no. camping pods, a porta-cabin shower block, 
installation of a septic tank, creation of a new access track and an associated 
scheme of landscaping. The plans at the front of the report shows the layout 
and the design of the pods. 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is within an existing agricultural field approximately 50m to the east 

of an existing farm complex at Garreg Einws, Llanelidan. The farm is an 
existing working farm with approximately 55 head of beef cattle and 275 
breeding ewes. 

1.2.2 To the southern boundary of the site is an elevated rocky outcrop, to the 
eastern boundary is an existing copse of trees, to the northern boundary is an 
existing farm track beyond which is land which is elevated above the site and 
the west of the site the land slopes up towards the existing farm complex. 

1.2.3 The site is located approximately 1.5km to the north east of the village of 
Llanelidan. It would be accessed by a private track off a single track road. The 
access off the single track road to the farm is approximately 250m to the north 
of the B5429. 

1.2.4 A Public Right of Way runs along the northern boundary of the application site 
along the existing farm track. 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside outside of any settlement 

boundaries as defined in the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan. 

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Permission was granted for the conversion of an outbuilding to the southern 

edge of the farm complex to a residential dwelling in May 2011. 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None 

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Conversion and change of use of redundant outbuilding to form a dwelling, erection of 

extension, installation of new septic tank and associated works GRANTED under 
delegated powers 27/05/2011. 

Tudalen 50



 22

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002) 

STRAT 9 - Tourism
 Policy GEN 3 - Development outside development boundaries

Policy GEN 6 - Development control requirements
Policy ENV 11 - Safeguarding of high quality agricultural land
Policy ENP 3 - Water resources
Policy TSM 6 - Farm diversification

 Policy TSM 9 - Static caravan and chalet development 
Policy TRA 6 - Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows 
Policy TRA 9 - Parking and Servicing Provision 

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG Note 20 - Static Caravan and Chalet Development

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (February 2011)

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Scale of development 
4.1.3 Sustainability
4.1.4   Visual and landscape impact
4.1.5  Residential amenity 
4.1.6  Highway/access issues 
4.1.7  Agricultural land quality
4.1.8  Ecology

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Policy STRAT 9 deals with tourism development. In the countryside or rural 
settlements, it highlights that development will be permitted in the form of small scale 
built or natural environment based tourism projects in the countryside and rural 
settlements where they provide appropriate infrastructure, accommodation and 
attractions, where they consolidate the tourism industry without unacceptably 
affecting social, highway, amenity, heritage or environmental interests. 

Policy GEN 3 contains a general restraint on new development outside development 
boundaries with a number of exceptions which include tourism/leisure schemes 
subject to compliance with basic criteria and other policies in the plan. 

Policy TSM 6 deals with proposals which diversify farm businesses through new 
tourism development. The policy requires that proposals must be secondary or 
supplementary to the main use of the farm enterprise in terms of land use/planning 
considerations. The policy also requires  that proposals have an acceptable impact on 
the long term working of the farm, do not lead to an unacceptable loss of agricultural 
land, have an acceptable impact in relation to landscape and nature conservation 
interests and has an acceptable impact on the locality in relation to increased activity. 

Policy TSM 9 is a detailed policy relating to new static caravan or chalet sites, and 
sets specific tests for proposals relating to the accessibility of the site and access to a 
choice of means of transport and the impact on the landscape and nature 

Tudalen 51



 23

conservation interests. It is considered that due to the nature of the development 
proposed, that the tests of Policy TSM 9 are applicable. 

The policies listed above accept the general principle of new tourism related 
development outside established settlements. The proposals are therefore 
considered to be acceptable in basicprinciple, subject to detailed impact tests in other 
policies of the Unitary Plan. 

4.2.2 Scale of development
In relation to farm diversification, Policy TSM 6 requires tourism related 
development is secondary or supplementary to the main use of the farm 
enterprise and does not unacceptably harm the permanent long term 
workings of the farm unit. 

The proposals are for the siting of 4no. camping pods on approximately 
0.25ha of land. The overall holding is 42ha with a further 16ha being rented 
from adjacent land owners. There are currently approximately 55 head of 
beef cattle and 275 breeding ewes being farmed on the land. 

It is considered that due to the scale and intensity of the proposals in relation 
to the current farm business, that the proposals can be accepted as 
secondary to the farm enterprise. It is also considered that the scale and 
intensity of the proposals ensure that there would be no unacceptable harm 
to the long term workings of the farm. For these reasons it is considered that 
the scale of the proposed development is acceptable and within the scope of 
the policy relating to farm diversification. 

4.2.3 Sustainability/Accessibility
Criterion i) of Policy TSM 9 requires that new static caravan and chalet sites 
must have good accessibility to an adequate local highway network and is 
accessible by a choice of means of transport. There is no locational test 
associated with Policy TSM 6 relating to farm diversification. Paragraph 7.3.3 
of PPW states that local planning authorities should adopt a positive 
approach to development associated with farm diversification in rural areas, 
irrespective of whether farms are served by public transport. 

The site is located approximately 1.5km from the village of Llanelidan which 
is served by a public house. There is a daily bus service running from 
Llanelidan to Ruthin. The 77 service departs Llanelidan at 10:43 and returns 
at 13:14. 

It is considered that in relation to Policy TSM 9 that the limited access to 
public transport would pose a conflict with criteria i). Due to the times and 
limited provision of bus service it is considered that public transport would not 
provide an adequate choice of means of transport, and visitors would be 
likely to be reliant on travel by private car. However the 2011 PPW states that 
proposals for farm diversification should be supported irrespective of access 
to public transport. This conflict suggests that the accessibility of the site must 
be balanced against the need to support schemes for farm diversification. 
Officers’ view is that due to the relatively limited scale and intensity of the 
proposals that are acceptable in relation to sustainability/accessibility 
considerations, having regard to the thrust of relevant local and national 
policies, acceptable in order to support farm diversification. It is considered 
that a condition ensuring that the site remains linked and secondary to the 
existing farm enterprise would be appropriate if a permission were to be 
considered. 

Tudalen 52



 24

4.2.4 Visual and landscape impact
Policy TSM 6 and Policy TSM 9 have tests requiring that proposals have an 
acceptable landscape impact. 

The proposed site is not subject to any specific landscape designations. The 
site has a copse of trees to the eastern boundary, raised rocky outcrops to 
the northern and southern boundaries and to the west the land slopes up 
towards the farm complex. 

In Officers’ opinion the impact on the wider landscape would be limited due to 
the scale and location of the site, the nature of the pod development, the 
existing boundary treatments and the topography of the land. Hence it is 
suggested the proposals are therefore acceptable in relation to landscape 
impact.

4.2.5 Residential amenity
Policy GEN 6 sets the requirement to assess the impact of development on 
the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties. 

The proposed access to the site is approximately 30m from the main 
farmhouse and approximately 50m away from an associated outbuilding 
which has an extant permission for conversion to a separate residential 
dwelling.

Is it considered that due to the scale and intensity of the proposed 
development and the separation distances and boundary treatments 
proposed that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact on the 
amenity of occupiers of properties in the vicinity. 

4.2.6 Highway/access issues
The main Unitary Plan policies relevant to assessment of highway impact are 
TRA 6 and TRA 9.  TRA 6 permits new development provided there is no 
unacceptable impact on the safe and free flow of traffic and the capacity of 
and traffic conditions on the surrounding road network are satisfactory. TRA 9 
requires adequate provision within a site for parking and servicing. 

Concerns have been raised in relation to the suitability of the existing single 
track road from the B5429 to the private farm track that serves as an access 
to the existing farm. This length of road measures approximately 250m. The 
concerns relate to the condition of the road not being acceptable in relation to 
the increased traffic levels. The highways officer is satisfied that the existing 
condition is satisfactory in relation to the likely associated increase in 
vehicular traffic. Proposals include parking and turning facilities within the 
site, with 1no. parking space allocated to each camping pod. The highways 
officer considers that these arrangements are acceptable providing the 
facilities are retained at all times. 

The concerns in relation to the suitability of the single track road serving as 
an access to the site from the B5429 are noted. However it is considered in 
relation to the likely increase in traffic that the impact on the surrounding road 
network will be limited. The parking and manoeuvring provision within the site 
is also appropriate for the development and the proposals are therefore 
considered acceptable in relation to highway/access issues. 

4.2.7 High quality agricultural land
Policy ENV 11 looks to resist unacceptable permanent loss of agricultural 
land of grades 1, 2, and 3a, except where overriding need exists, and land of 

Tudalen 53



 25

lower quality is not available, or lower grade land has other specific statutory 
protection.

The site is shown as being within grade 3 agricultural land on the ADAS 
Agricultural Land Classification map of England and Wales. The site area is 
approximately 0.25ha. Submitted supporting information states that the 
agricultural land that will be lost is not versatile due to rocky outcrops and is 
only suitable for grazing. 

As noted, indicative maps suggest that the land is grade 3 agricultural land. 
There is no indication whether this falls within grade 3a agricultural land, 
which would be classified as high quality, or grade 3b. Considering the 
amount of agricultural land that would be lost, and the constraints to the 
versatility of the agricultural use of the land (topography, rocky outcrops etc.), 
it would not be considered reasonable to require a full assessment of land 
quality to be undertaken. Due to the nature of the development it is also 
considered that it would be reasonable to suggest the land could be returned 
to agricultural use should the proposed use cease, and a condition could be 
drafted to this effect. For the reasons above, it is respectfully suggested that 
there is therefore no requirement on the applicants to establish an ‘overriding 
need’ for the development or to demonstrate land of lower quality is available 
as set out in planning policy. 

4.2.8 Ecology
Unitary Plan policies, Welsh Government guidance and current legislation 
oblige due consideration of impact on ecological interests, and in particular 
protected species (ENV 1, ENV 6 and GEN 6).  This approach is supported 
by SPG 18 – Nature Conservation and Species Protection. 

There are no comments on the application from the Biodiversity Officer or 
CCW. 

Due to the scale and location of the proposals it is considered that the 
proposals would have a negligible impact in relation to ecological interests. 

Other issues raised
Water Supply
Policy ENP 3 requires that adequate water resources are available to serve 
the development and that the additional need generated can be made 
available without causing unacceptable harm to water quality or ecosystems. 

Concerns have been raised over the impact of the development on water 
supply in the area. It is understood that the proposed development would 
require a site licence to operate, and this process would require that a 
wholesome and sufficient supply of water is available for use.  The matter is 
therefore controlled through separate legislation. 

Subject to this control and having regard to the scale of the development, the 
proposals are considered acceptable in relation to impact on water supply. 

Precedent
Officers acknowledge concerns over setting a precedent for further 
development.  The recommendation to grant permission is based on 
development being on a small scale and supporting farm diversification.  
Further development is unlikely to be supported in principle. 

Tudalen 54



 26

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The proposed site is not in a location which is readily accessible by a range of modes 

of transport, however taking into the consideration the scale and intensity of the 
proposals and the requirement to support proposals for farm diversification, it is 
considered the proposals are on balance acceptable, in relation to policy and are 
recommended for grant, subject to the use being tied to the farm enterprise and a 
condition to require reinstatement of the land on cessation of the use.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years 
from the date of this permission. 
2. No more than 4no. units of accommodation shall be stationed on the land at any time. 
3. The units of accommodation shall be occupied for holiday purposes only and not as a 
person's sole or main place of residence.  The site operator shall maintain an up-to-date 
register of the names of the occupier of each unit on the site, their main home addresses, the 
dates each unit has been occupied, and by whom. The information shall be made available 
for inspection at all reasonable times on written request from the Local Planning Authority. 
4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall 
be carried out no later than the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of 
the first unit.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 
the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the local planning 
authority gives written approval to any variation. 
5. The development hereby approved shall be run as part of the Garreg Eiinws farm 
enterprise at all times, and shall not be operated at a separate business at any time, and shall 
remain secondary to the agricultural use of the enterprise at all times. 
6. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
If the use hereby permitted ceases, the site and the land shall be reinstated to agricultural 
use, and to the condition shown on photographs contained within the submitted design and 
access statement, within a period of 6 months from the cessation of the use. 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure units of accommodation do not exceed the 
approved numbers at any time. 
3. To ensure the units are occupied for tourism/holiday use, as a permanent residential 
use would be contrary to adopted development plan policy. 
4. In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
5. To ensure compliance with polices relating to rural restraint. 
6. In the interest of the protection of high quality agricultural land and visual and 
landscape amenity. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

You are advised that the Council's support for the proposals is based on the small scale of the 
development and its potential as a diversification of the farm enterprise, in line with planning 
policy.  Additional similar development and development not directly connected with the farm 
enterprise are unlikely to receive support. 

The Council's attention has been drawn to water supply issues, which you should ensure are 
not a limitation on the ability to implement the permission.  The use of the land is subject to 
separate licensing requirements administered by the Council's Public Protection section, and 
you should contact the relevant officers to ascertain the information necessary.  The Council 
can not act as an arbitrator in any civil dispute between parties over rights to water supply.

Tudalen 55



 27

DXR
ITEM NO: 4

WARD NO: Llandyrnog

APPLICATION NO: 24/2012/0086/ PF 

PROPOSAL: Erection of 2 no. extensions to existing agricultural buildings (partly in 
retrospect) 

LOCATION: Bod Ynys   Rhewl  Ruthin 

APPLICANT: Mr D  Roberts  

CONSTRAINTS: C2 Flood Zone 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
LLANYNYS COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
‘No objection’ 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY 
No objection 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Letters of objection received from: 
Mrs. C. Williams, Bryn Hyfryd, Rhewl, Ruthin 
Mr. C. I. Williams, Bryn Hyfryd, Rhewl, Ruthin 
Mr Stephen Williams, Bryn Hyfryd, Rhewl LL15 1UL 
J. Jones, Erw Eithin Bach, Rhewl, Ruthin 
E. Jones, Erw Eithin Bach, Rhewl, Ruthin 

Summary of planning based representations: 
Need for development 
Visual impact - selection of materials 
Highway impact - current access track in poor condition 
Flood risk - inadequate assessment submitted 
Inadequate consultation 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   26/03/2012

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals

Tudalen 56



 28

1.1.1 The proposal is one of two on the agenda relating to development at the farm 
at Bod Ynys, Rhewl. The first concerns the erection of two extensions to 
agricultural sheds at the property. 

1.1.2 One extension is to the west of the farm complex and adjoins existing 
buildings to the south west and south east elevations, and would provide a 
‘loafing’ area. The area is stated as being required to improve livestock 
welfare. It would measure 37m in length, 20.5m in width and 4.4m in height. 
The other extension would be to the south east of the complex and would be 
adjoining an existing agricultural building. The extension is indicated as being 
required to create an improved area for providing veterinary functions. The 
extension would measure 12m in length, 4.6m in depth and 5m in height. 
Materials to be used on the buildings are stated to match existing, i.e. slate 
grey box profile sheets, Yorkshire boarding and concrete block plinths. 

1.1.3 The proposed development has been partially completed (see attached plan). 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is an existing farm complex to the north of the village of Rhewl, 

Ruthin.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is within the Vale of Clwyd Historic Landscape, a designated C2 

flood zone and designated Nitrate Vulnerable Zone (NVZ). The site is outside 
of any development boundaries as defined in the Unitary Development Plan. 

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The sections records reveal applications for a cattle shed in 2001 and a 

cubicle building in 2008. 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The proposed development has commenced, hence the application is now 

partially in retrospect. 

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 This application is presented to Planning Committee alongside an application 

for the retention of an existing slurry store at the same farm complex. 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Erection of cattle shed and extensions to existing agricultural buildings GRANTED 

under delegated powers 17/08/2001 

2.2 Erection of cubicle building extension for dairy cattle GRANTED under delegated 
powers 23/10/2008 

2.3 Construction of a circular slurry store GRANTED under delegated powers 06/12/2010 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002) 

Policy GEN 3 - Development Outside Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 - Development Control Requirements

 Policy EMP 13 - Agricultural Development

Tudalen 57



 29

Policy CON 12 - Historic Landscapes, parks and gardens
Policy ENP 6 - Flooding
Policy TRA 6 - Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows 

3.2 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (February 2011)

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact 
4.1.3 Residential amenity
4.1.4 Highway safety
4.1.5 Flood risk

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Policy GEN 3 allows for certain types of development outside development 
boundaries. Criterion vi) permits agricultural development providing there is 
no unacceptable impact on the social natural and built environment. EMP 13 
relates specifically to agricultural development, and the aim of this policy is to 
ensure agricultural development has no unacceptable impact on the 
environment. Proposals must comply with four tests relating to; i) the need for 
the development, ii) the use of alternative existing buildings, iii) the impact of 
development on the character and appearance of the countryside and iv) the 
siting relating well to the existing complex. 

The proposed extensions are required to improve animal welfare conditions 
by providing additional space and new treatment facilities. There are no 
redundant buildings existing on the farm complex that could fulfil this 
requirement. The proposals are therefore considered to be acceptable in 
relation to criteria i) and ii) of Policy EMP 13, and acceptable in principle.

4.2.2 Visual and landscape impact

The site lies within the Vale of Clwyd Historic Landscape. Policy CON 12 
requires that development does not unacceptably harm the character of a 
historic landscape. The general requirement to assess landscape and visual 
impact of agricultural development are set out in criteria iii) and iv) of Policy 
EMP 13. 

The proposals are for extensions to existing farm buildings. Materials are 
proposed to match existing agricultural buildings on the farm complex. 

With respect to the concerns over the visual impact, it is considered that by 
virtue of the scale, location, design and materials of the proposals, that the 
development would have a minimal impact on the wider landscape. The 
proposals are therefore considered to comply with the requirements of Policy 
CON12 and criteria iii) of Policy EMP13. The proposals are for extensions to 
existing buildings and by virtue of this are well related to the existing farm 
complex and therefore comply with the requirements of criteria iv) of Policy 
EMP 13. 

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Policy GEN 6 v) sets a requirement to ensure new development does not 
unacceptably affect the amenities of local residents, by virtue of noise, 
activity, fumes, etc. 

Tudalen 58



 30

The proposals are for extensions to existing buildings within an existing farm 
complex. The closest residential property to the proposed extensions is 
approximately 150m away. 

Having regard to the proximity to residential properties and considering that 
the proposals are for extensions to an existing farm complex, it is considered 
that there will be no unacceptable impact on residential amenity. 

4.2.4 Highway safety
Policy TRA6 requires that the capacity and traffic conditions on the 
surrounding road network are satisfactory. 

Concerns have been raised in relation to the condition of local roads. The 
proposed development does not include any alteration to access 
arrangements. 

It is not considered that the proposals would generate a level of additional 
activity giving rise to traffic which could be deemed likely to have an 
unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. The proposals are not 
considered contrary to TRA 6. 

4.2.5 Flood risk
Policy ENP 6 requires that development does not result in an unacceptable 
risk from flooding. 

Concerns have been raised over the adequacy of the information submitted 
in relation to flood risk. The Environment Agency have raised no objection 
subject to the applicant being advised to install flood proofing measures. 

The application relates to agricultural development. The applicant can be 
advised to install flood proofing measures. On this basis, in the absence of 
any Environment Agency objection, it is considered the proposals are 
acceptable in relation to flood risk. 

Other matters raised
Whilst of indirect relevance to this application, neighbours have raised 
concerns that consultation on the previous slurry store planning application 
had not been undertaken correctly. For the record, files show that letters were 
sent to Bryn Hyfryd, Crossing Cottage and Erw Eithin Bach and that no 
objections were raised following this consultation. In relation to the two 
applications now on the agenda, all these properties have been consulted 
and offered the opportunity to comment. 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The development is considered to comply with the relevant policy tests and is 

therefore recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:- 

1. No conditions imposed. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

None

Tudalen 59



 31

DXR
ITEM NO: 5

WARD NO: Llandyrnog

APPLICATION NO: 24/2012/0127/ PC 

PROPOSAL: Construction of a circular slurry store - amended details (retrospective 
application) 

LOCATION: Bod Ynys   Rhewl  Ruthin 

APPLICANT: Mr D W  Roberts  

CONSTRAINTS: C2 Flood Zone 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
LLANYNYS COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
‘No objection’ 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY 
No objection 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Letters of representation received from: 
Chris Ruane MP (on behalf of Mrs. C. Williams, Bryn Hyfryd, Rhewl 
Ann Jones AM, Constituency Office, 25, Kinmel St., Rhyl 
C.T. Willilams, Bryn Hyfryd, Rhewl, Ruthin 

Summary of planning based objections: 
Landscape on visual impact - scale and materials not appropriate, impact on the Vale 
of Clwyd Historic Landscape 
Impact on residential amenity - disturbance caused by odour omitted 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   29/03/2012

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is the second on the agenda relating to developments at Bod 

Ynys. This one involves the retention of an above ground circular slurry store 
on land to the north east of the main farm complex.  

Tudalen 60



 32

1.1.2 The store measures 26.75m in diameter and is 4.3m high (see details at front 
of report). 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is an existing farm complex to the north of the village of Rhewl, 

Ruthin. The closest residential property to the development is Bryn Hyfryd, 
which is approximately 130m from the slurry store. 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is within the Vale of Clwyd Historic Landscape, a designated C2 

flood zone and designated Nitrate Vulnerable Zone (NVZ). The site is outside 
of any development boundaries as defined in the Unitary Development Plan. 

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 An application for an above ground circular slurry store was granted under 

delegated powers in December 2010. Following an enforcement investigation 
in relation to an alleged breach in planning control it has become apparent 
that the slurry store erected in relation to this permission has not been 
completed in accordance with the approved details. 

1.4.2 The slurry store as built is 26.75m in diameter and has been finished in un-
treated concrete. This represents an increase in diameter of 3.75m from the 
plans approved, which showed the use of dark green steel sheeting. 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None 

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The farm is under the ownership of Denbighshire County Council. 

1.6.2 This application is presented to Planning Committee alongside an application 
for extension to 2 agricultural buildings at the same farm complex. 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Erection of cattle shed and extensions to existing agricultural buildings GRANTED 

under delegated powers 17/08/2001 

2.2 Erection of cubicle building extension for dairy cattle GRANTED under delegated 
powers 23/10/2008 

2.3 Construction of a circular slurry store GRANTED under delegated powers 06/12/2010 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002) 

Policy GEN 3 - Development Outside Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 - Development Control Requirements

 Policy EMP 13 - Agricultural Development
Policy CON 12 - Historic Landscapes, parks and gardens
Policy ENP 6 - Flooding

3.2 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (February 2011)

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 

Tudalen 61



 33

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4  Flood risk

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.2.1 Principle
Policy GEN 3 allows for certain types of development outside development 
boundaries. Criterion vi) permits agricultural development providing there is 
no unacceptable impact on the social natural and built environment. EMP 13 
relates specifically to agricultural development, and the aim of this policy is to 
ensure agricultural development has no unacceptable impact on the 
environment. Proposals must comply with four tests relating to; i) the need for 
the development, ii) the use of alternative existing buildings, iii) the impact of 
development on the character and appearance of the countryside and iv) the 
siting relating well to the existing complex. 

Questions have been raised in relation to the need for a slurry tank of the size 
that has been constructed. The site is within a designated Nitrate Vulnerable 
Zone and there is a requirement for the farm to have the capacity to store at 
least 5 months of slurry in order to comply with the relevant regulations. 
Based on submitted calculations the previously approved scheme would have 
provided 5.6 months of storage capacity. The increased capacity of the store 
as constructed is stated as providing 6.07 months of storage capacity. This 
equates to a capacity of approximately 20% above the legislative minimum. 
As statutory consultees, the Environment Agency have not disputed these 
calculations.

It is noted that the slurry store as built exceeds the capacity deemed sufficient 
in the previous submission. However, officers consider that a level of capacity 
approximately 20% above the statutory minimum would not seem excessive. 
It is also respectfully suggested that the additional capacity provided by the 
store as built may provide a level of flexibility in relation to 
fluctuations/increases in stock numbers, that may avoid the need for 
additional installations to be provided, and less regular emptying. It is 
therefore considered that proposals are reasonably required to meet the 
needs of the farm enterprise and comply with the requirements of criteria i) of 
Policy EMP 13. 

In relation to the availability of alternative redundant buildings, no other 
suitable buildings exist on the site that could meet the need for additional 
slurry storage. Therefore it is considered that proposals comply with the 
requirement to preferentially re-use redundant buildings, and comply with the 
requirements of criteria ii) of Policy EMP 13. 

4.2.2 Impact on visual amenity

The site lies within the Vale of Clwyd Historic Landscape. Policy CON 12 
requires that development does not unacceptably harm the character of a 
historic landscape. The general requirement to assess landscape and visual 
impact of agricultural development are set out in criteria iii) and iv) of Policy 
EMP 13. 

Local resident have expressed concerns over the landscape/visual impact of 
the proposed slurry store. The store is located the northern edge of the 

Tudalen 62



 34

existing complex, directly adjacent to existing open silage clamps and 
approximately 22m from the nearest existing agricultural building. Neighbours 
have suggested that alternative siting would reduce the impact of the slurry 
store. Submitted information states that the present siting has been chosen in 
response to topographical and operational constraints. 

It is agreed that the current un-treated concrete finish on the slurry store is 
not in keeping with the existing farm complex, however it is considered that 
this issue can be addressed through an appropriately worded condition. 
Hence whilst acknowledging the concerns of local residents, it is respectfully 
suggested that the impact on the wider landscape would be minimal due to 
the scale and siting of the development in relation to the existing farm 
complex, subject to an appropriate colour finish being secured through 
condition. For these reasons the development is considered to have an 
acceptable impact in relation to landscape and visual amenity and complies 
with the requirements of Policy CON 12 and EMP 13.  Additional landscaping 
is proposed to lessen the impact of the development by maintaining a 150m 
section of hedge between the store and the residential property at Bryn 
Hyfryd to be maintained, at a minimum height of 4m. 

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Policy GEN 6 v) sets a requirement to ensure new development does not 
unacceptably affect the amenities of local residents, by virtue of noise, 
activity, fumes, etc. 

The occupier of the adjoining property has raised concerns on the potential 
impact of the proposed development, in relation to odour, given the proximity 
of the development to residential properties. The Environment Agency and 
the Public Protection department of Denbighshire County Council, raise no 
concerns over health impacts of slurry storage. It is understood the proposed 
development is necessary to comply with NVZ regulations which require 5 
months slurry storage for farms within NVZ’s. Public Protection Officers have 
confirmed that the ability to store greater amounts of slurry would actually 
improve the situation in relation to smells as issues of odour release from 
slurry are greatest when stored slurry is being distributed as fertiliser. 
Increased storage capacity would mean that distribution of the stored slurry 
would occur less often and therefore reduce exposure to the odour. 

In acknowledging the concerns in relation to odour, officers respectfully 
suggest due consideration has to be given to the fact that the proposal 
relates to development adjacent to a long established working farm. The 
Public Protection officers also consider the slurry store may actually bring 
about a reduction in the frequency of release of odour, since it would reduce 
the number of times necessary to move material. In officers’ view, the 
development would not seem likely to result in significant additional potential 
for smells, sufficient to merit refusal of permission. 

4.2.4 Flood risk
Policy ENP 6 requires that development does not result in an unacceptable 
risk from flooding. 

The Environment Agency have raised no objection subject to the applicant 
being advised to install flood proofing measures. 

Provided that the applicant is advised to install flood proofing measures it is 
considered the proposals are acceptable in relation to flood risk. 

Tudalen 63



 35

4.2.5 Other matters raised
Neighbours have raised concerns that consultation on the previous planning 
application for a slurry store had not been undertaken correctly. Records 
show that letters were sent to Bryn Hyfryd, Crossing Cottage and Erw Eithin 
Bach, and that no objections were raised following this consultation. All these 
properties have been consulted on the current slurry store application and 
offered the opportunity to comment. 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The development is considered to comply with the relevant policy tests and is 

therefore recommended for grant

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:- 

1. The store hereby approved shall be painted dark green in accordance with the 
approved plans within 2 months of the date of this permission. 
2. The 150m section of hedge marked on the approved plan shall be grown to and 
maintained at a height of 4m unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 

1. In the interest of visual amenity. 
2. In the interest of visual amenity. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

None

Tudalen 64



 36

DXR
ITEM NO: 6

WARD NO: Prestatyn East 

APPLICATION NO: 43/2012/0102/ PF 

PROPOSAL: Change of use of shop (Class A1) at 45 High Street to café (Class A3) with 
formation of internal access into cinema complex and external seating area 

LOCATION: Scala Cinema & Tourist Information Centre 45/47/49  High Street   
Prestatyn 

APPLICANT: Scala Cinema Co.  Limited  

CONSTRAINTS: C1 Flood Zone 
Conservation Area 
Article 4 Direction 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - Yes 
Press Notice - Yes  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Referral by Head of Planning/Development Control Manager 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL 
“No objection”

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Letters of representation received from: 
Mrs. B. Bulutoglu, 48, High Street, Prestatyn 

Summary of planning based objection: 
Change of use - Loss of retail unit and over concentration of A3 units in the town centre 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   26/03/2012

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal relates to the use of part of the ground floor of the Scala 

Cinema, Prestatyn. 

1.1.2 The proposed change is from an existing A1 retail use to an A3 café, 
involving the formation of an internal access and provision of an external 
seating area to the front of the property. The total floor area of the proposed 
café would be 38m

2
. Opening times proposed are 10.00hrs to 22.00hrs 

Monday to Friday and Sundays and Bank Holidays and 10.00hrs to 23.00hrs 
on Saturdays.  

Tudalen 65



 37

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The existing building is a cinema and theatre complex including meeting 

rooms, café/bar and a retail shop. 

1.2.2 The site is located on the eastern side of the High Street in Prestatyn. There 
is a mix of A1, A2 and A3 uses in the locality. 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the Development Boundary, Conservation Area, 

Town Centre and Principal Shopping Frontage as defined in the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Permission was granted for demolition of the existing cinema and shops to be 

replaced by a cinema and theatre complex including meeting rooms, café/bar 
and a retail shop in 2004. 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None 

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Demolition of existing cinema and shops, retention of part of existing façade and 

erection of new cinema and theatre complex, community meeting rooms, café/bar, 
shop and roof terrace GRANTED 16/12/2004. 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002) 

Policy GEN1 - Development within Development Boundaries 
 Policy GEN6 - Development Control Requirements 
 Policy CON5 - Development within Conservation Area 
 Policy RET1 - Town and District Centres 
 Policy RET5 - Principle Shopping Frontages in Town Centres: Non A1 Uses

3.2 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (February 2011)

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The general thrust of Policy RET 5 is to protect the retail offer in the Principal 
Shopping Frontages of town centres. Policy RET 5 states that changes of use 
from A1 uses should not result in an unacceptable clustering or concentration 
of non A1 uses and should not lead to a continuous frontage of three or more 
non A1 uses. 

The Scala building is already in mixed use, and is one of 10 non A1 units out 
of a total 38 units in the designated RET 5 area. This equates to a ratio of 
1/3.8. The building is at the southern end of a run of 4 non A1 uses in the 
RET 5 principal shopping frontage, so poses a potential conflict with test (i) of 
Policy RET 5. 

Tudalen 66



 38

As noted, the Scala complex forms a single mixed use unit and tests of 
concentration and continuous frontage are not considered applicable due to 
this. However the general thrust of the policy to protect retail offer within the 
principal shopping frontage is considered relevant, and taken factually, the 
proposed change of use would lead to the loss of approximately 38m

2
 of 

street frontage retail floorspace. Having regard to the amount of retail 
floorspace to be lost at the site and considering the retail floorspace to be 
provided on the nearby Prestatyn Shopping Park, it is considered that the 
loss of floorspace would not  be unacceptable, and would not threaten the 
vitality and viability of the centre as a whole. The proposed change of use is 
therefore acceptable in principle.  However, to respect  the relationship with 
the Prestatyn Shopping Park it is considered appropriate to recommend a 
temporary permission to allow an assessment of the impact of the proposals 
once the additional retail provision is established. 

4.2.2 Other considerations
As this is for an alteration to an existing mixed use unit, in Officers’ opinion no 
other material considerations are of direct relevance to the proposals.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The proposed loss of retail floorspace on the principal shopping frontage is 

considered acceptable, given the scale of the loss and likely new provision nearby. 
The change of use is therefore recommended on a temporary basis pending further 
assessment following the new retail floorspace at the Prestatyn Shopping Park 
becoming established.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT - subject to the following conditions:- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years 
from the date of this permission. 
2. The change of use hereby granted is for a temporary period of 3 years and shall be 
returned to an Class A1 use as defined by the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order 1987 3 years from the date of this permission. 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.
2. To allow assessment of the loss of retail floorspace. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

None

Tudalen 67



 39

IXW
ITEM NO: 7

WARD NO: Rhuddlan 

APPLICATION NO: 44/2011/1500/ PF 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single-storey dwelling and erection of new 4-bed two-
storey dwelling 

LOCATION: Nevis  Marsh Road Rhuddlan  Rhyl 

APPLICANT: Mr Simon Thomas  

CONSTRAINTS: C1 Flood Zone 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Applicant is related to a Member of the Council 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
RHUDDLAN TOWN COUNCIL 
”Recommend for permission”. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY WALES 
The Agency does not object to the development, subject to the inclusion of conditions 
on any permission controlling finished floor levels (ground and first floor).  The 
Agency’s response follows consideration of the Flood Consequences Assessment, and 
confirms there is no change in vulnerability type, as the two storey dwelling in place of 
a single storey dwelling will result in reduced consequences of flooding to occupants 
(bedrooms at first floor level are above the highest predicted flood level and can be 
used as a refuge).  The response notes there is no breach assessment, so 
recommends the Council considers the structural soundness/robustness of the dwelling 
in a breach event, i.e. its ability to withstand the velocity and depth of flooding and 
impact from debris which it may be exposed to; and finally, that consideration be given 
to the acceptability of emergency plans, procedures and measures to address 
structural damage. 

DENBIGHSHRIE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES
HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
No objection subject to a condition to ensure the parking and turning facilities are 
provided in accordance with the plans prior to the dwelling being brought into use. 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Letters of representation received from: 
Mr. S. Pownall, Hillcrest, Marsh Road, Rhuddlan 

Summary of planning based representations: 

Tudalen 68



 40

In objection -  

Visual/residential amenity impact 
Scale not subordinate to existing dwelling/overdevelopment of site with other 
permissions including warden’s accommodation. 

Highways/access 
Number of cars and car spaces too dangerous for the access given use by other cars 
and children. 

Other matters
Issues over ownership and delineation of boundaries 
Overlap with consent for touring caravans at Clwyd View. 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   11/03/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

! additional information required from applicant 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application seeks full planning permission to erect a replacement 

dwelling on land adjacent to, and forming part of the Clwyd View Touring 
Caravan Park off Marsh Road, Rhuddlan. 

1.1.2 The intention is to replace an existing single storey dwelling Nevis, with a two 
storey dwelling sited some 7 metres further to the west.  The proposal 
involves a minor relocation of the vehicular access serving the existing site off 
a private road, construction of a new driveway to a turning area and garage, 
continued use of the existing garden area as a private garden, and the 
creation of a new ‘rear’ garden area on land which forms part of the Clwyd 
View Caravan Park.  The detailing is shown on the plans at the front of the 
report. 

1.1.3 The proposed dwelling is shown on the plans with cream painted roughcast 
render on the walls, and tiles on the roofs.  The plans also illustrate proposals 
for additional tree planting within the plot. 

1.1.4 The application is accompanied by a Planning Statement and a Design and 
Access Statement and a Flood Consequences Assessment.  The main points 
of relevance in these documents are:- 

- the existing dwelling is of mixed construction and finishes, and has 
undergone extensions in the past, resulting in a mis match of styles.  
It is outdated by modern standards and is of little aesthetic merit; 

- consideration has been given to extending the existing dwelling, but 
this is not deemed to be  a realistic proposal because of the 
positioning of the dwelling (close to boundaries and other property); 
impracticalities given the location and size of garden; an extended 
single storey dwelling would look out of character with neighbouring 
properties (all 2 storey construction); and excessive costs for 

Tudalen 69



 41

upgrading to provide space/accommodation suitable for a young 
family;

-  the design and siting takes account of the layout of the site and 
relationship to existing dwellings and boundaries; 

- care has been taken to ensure no overlooking, overshadowing, loss 
of privacy or disturbance to neighbouring properties; 

- tree planting would be enhanced; 

- the use of external materials would match that on neighbouring 
properties; 

- the proposal is consistent with planning policy; 

- appropriate measures will be taken to meet relevant environmental 
sustainability standards; 

- in the Flood Consequences Assessment : the site is in a C1 flood 
zone but the proposal is to replace an existing bungalow with a 2 
storey dwelling, i.e. one “highly vulnerable” development with 
another.  The flood risk is fluvial and tidal, with the latter being the 
greater concern.  The existing bungalow would be flooded with the 
predicted tidal event, but has no dry refuge for current occupants to 
escape to, whereas the proposed development would have a first 
floor level which would be dry, and provide a safe refuge for persons 
who have failed to evacuate the site.  The Assessment recommends 
there should be no basement level, no ground floor bedrooms and 
should be a minimum of 2 storey accommodation, with a minimum 
first floor level of 6.41 AOD, so that is above the predicted tidal flood 
event.  The new building should incorporate standard flood proofing 
measures, and provide suitable hazard warning signs, a flood 
evacuation plan, and Environment Agency contact details. 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The application site is located off Marsh Road, some 60 metres to the west of 

the A525 Rhuddlan By-pass flyover as it rises from the A547 roundabout 
towards Rhyl.  It is immediately to the south west of the dwelling Clwyd View, 
with which it shares its north west boundary.  Clwyd View is part of the 
adjacent touring caravan park. 

1.2.2 The site is accessed from a narrow private road off Marsh Road, which also 
serves 4 private dwellings lying to the north west of the site (Bryn Foel, 
Loretto, Maberta, and Hillcrest). 

1.2.3 As previously described, Nevis is a single storey dwelling lying close to Clwyd 
View.  It has developed over a period of time via extensions and alterations, 
has a section with spar dash render walls, and timber clad walls, and has its 
own private garden area with a number of trees and screen fences bordering 
adjacent private gardens. 

1.2.4 The dwellings at Bryn Foel, Loretto, Maberta, and Hillcrest are physically 
linked.  These are partly 2 storey and single storey units with a mix of 
rendered walls and slate roofs. 

Tudalen 70



 42

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site lies within the development boundary of Rhuddlan as defined in the 

Unitary Development Plan.  It has no specific use annotation on the 
Proposals Map for Rhuddlan. 

1.3.2 Under the development advice maps of TAN 15 Development and Flood Risk 
the site is within zone C1 (areas of floodplain with significant infrastructure, 
including flood defences). 

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 There is limited planning history of direct relevance to the current application.  

Part of the site extends into land forming part of the Clwyd View Caravan 
Park, and the development would appear to involve the loss of two plots 
forming the subject of a 2001 permission for the siting of 6 touring caravans. 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Additional information has been sought from the Applicant to address 

concerns raised by the Environment Agency in relation to flood risk. 

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application is being considered by Planning Committee as the applicant’s 

father is a County Councillor. 

1.6.2 Following receipt of representations questioning issues of land ownership, the 
applicant has confirmed that he owns the Nevis plot, and that a section of the 
site proposed for the dwelling and rear garden is in the ownership of the 
property Clwyd View (the applicant’s father), and that consequently the 
relevant notice has been served on the owner, and Certificate B has been 
completed as part of the application forms. 

1.6.3 The Flood Consequences Assessment was submitted at the end of January 
2012.

1.6.4 All consultees, the Town Council, and neighbours are aware of the ownership 
situation and the Flood Consequences Assessment, and have been offered 
opportunity to comment on these matters. 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 44/2001/255 

Change of use of land to form existing touring park and siting of 6 no. caravans – 
GRANTED at Planning Committee – 16/05/2001 

Adjacent land
44/2011/414/PF 
Replacement of existing static caravan with a log cabin style unit for warden’s 
accommodation and erection of a steel pitched roof canopy over existing 
toilet/shower block – Clwyd View Touring Caravan Park, Marsh Road, Rhuddlan, 
Rhyl – GRANTED at Planning Committee, July 2011. 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002) 

Policy GEN 1 – Development within Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 – Development Control Requirements

Tudalen 71



 43

Policy HSG 3 – Housing development in Main Villages
Policy  ENV 7 – Landscape/townscape features

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPG 25 – Residential Development Design Guide.

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 4 2011 

Technical Advice Notes 
TAN 12 – Design 
TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk 
TAN 21 – Parking requirements in New Development

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle of development
4.1.2 Visual impact 
4.1.3 Residential amenity impact 
4.1.4  Flood risk
4.1.5  Highways
4.1.6  Design and access/Sustainability/Access for all 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle of development

The main Unitary Development Plan Policies relevant to the principle of the 
development are GEN 1 and HSG 3.  GEN 1 seeks to locate development 
within settlements defined by development boundaries as defined on the 
proposals maps.  Rhuddlan is a Main Village in the Unitary Plan, and the site 
lies within the development boundary of the settlement.  HSG 3 looks to 
locate most housing development in Main Villages such as Rhuddlan. 

There are no policies in the Unitary Plan which deal specifically with 
proposals to erect replacement dwellings within Main Village development 
boundaries.  However, the general principle of single plot dwelling 
developments would be considered acceptable within established settlements 
subject to due assessment of localised impacts. 

4.2.2 Visual impact
Visual impact tests for new development are contained in policy GEN 6 of the 
Unitary Plan, which seeks to ensure that development respects the site and 
surroundings in terms of siting, design and layout.  ENV 7 seeks to protect 
features of value to townscape character. 

The proposed 2 storey dwelling would be located to the south west of the 
existing dwelling Nevis, meaning it would be further away from the existing 
dwellings which front the shared private road along the north east boundary of 
the site.  The nearest part of the front of the proposed dwelling would be 
some 22 metres from the walls of the dwelling Loretta.  The replacement 
dwelling would be constructed with rendered walls and the plans show a tiled 
roof.  Representations received express concern over the scale of the 
proposed dwelling, suggesting it overwhelms the existing dwelling.  Other 
comments request use of slate on the roofs to match materials used on 
nearby dwellings. 

Tudalen 72



 44

In officers’ opinion, whilst respecting the concerns outlined, the type of 
dwelling would not be inappropriate in the context of existing dwellings in the 
immediate vicinity, which include 2 storey units.  There is no policy 
requirement in the Unitary Plan that a replacement dwelling within a 
development boundary is similar in scale to the original.  The dwelling would 
cover approximately 20% of the proposed plot, which would not represent an 
overdevelopment of the site.  The use of render on the external walls would 
be complementary to that on surrounding dwellings.  Officers would consider 
it reasonable to require use of slate on the roofs if  permission were to be 
granted. 

4.2.3 Residential amenity impact
The main Unitary Plan policy requiring assessment of impact on residential 
amenity is GEN 6.  This obliges due regard to be given to the effect of new 
development on the occupiers of nearby dwelling houses, including 
evaluation of acceptability of the size/scale and intensity of development, and 
impacts such as noise and disturbance. 

The plans at the front of the report illustrate the respective relationships 
between the proposed replacement dwelling and existing dwellings.  There 
are no objections raised on grounds of loss of privacy/overlooking, etc., from 
the proposals; although one objector considers the erection of another 
dwelling would be overdevelopment given the number of planning 
applications passed in the area, including a warden’s lodge. 

The siting of the dwelling and the position of main windows would limit the 
potential for overlooking, and any loss of privacy for occupiers of nearby 
dwellings.  In Officers’ opinion there would be no adverse residential amenity 
impacts from the replacement dwelling.  In relation to the issue of 
‘overdevelopment’, officers would not consider the erection of a replacement 
dwelling in the manner proposed would lead to a cramping of development in 
relation to either existing dwellings, or to development on the Clwyd View site.
The proposed dwelling would be located some 30 metres from the approved 
warden’s accommodation unit. 

4.2.4 Flooding/drainage
Flooding and drainage considerations are contained in Policies ENP 4, ENP 6 
and GEN 6 of the Unitary Plan and in TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk.  
The basic requirement is to ensure there are no unacceptable flooding, foul or 
surface water impacts from development. 

The site is located in a C1 Flood Zone as identified on the maps produced in 
connection with TAN 15.  C1 Zones are those served by significant 
infrastructure, including flood defences, where TAN 15 indicates development 
can take place subject to the Council applying relevant justification tests, and 
considering the relevant Flood Consequences Assessment, and Environment 
Agency recommendations.  In this instance, the application involves 
effectively a ‘like for like’ replacement of an existing dwelling on a site 
immediately adjacent, offering first floor ‘refuge’ accommodation in the event 
of flooding.  The Environment Agency Wales have reviewed the submitted 
Flood Consequences Assessment and have raised no objections subject to 
the inclusion of conditions setting minimum ground and first floor levels, and 
to due consideration of the robustness of construction of the dwelling, and 
measures such as emergency plans and measures to address potential 
structural damage. 

Having regard to the Environment Agency response, Officers consider the 

Tudalen 73



 45

proposals to be acceptable in terms of the tests of principle in TAN 15.  They 
involve the replacement of an existing dwelling within a defined development 
boundary and the Flood Consequences’ Assessment demonstrates no 
change in the vulnerability of the development.  Indeed, the proposals offer an 
improvement on the existing situation by providing first floor accommodation 
capable of use as a refuge in an extreme flood event.  It is suggested that 
control over the robustness of the construction and details of emergency pans 
in the event of flood events can be imposed by conditions, requiring approval 
of relevant details before commencement of development, in liaison with 
Building Control and Emergency Planning colleagues. 

4.2.5 Highways/impact
The main Unitary Plan policies relevant to assessment of highway impact are 
TRA 6 and TRA 9.  TRA 6 permits new development provided there are no 
unacceptable impacts on the safe and free flow of traffic, and the capacity of 
and traffic conditions on the surrounding ro0ad network are satisfactory.  TRA 
9 requires adequate provision within a site for parking and servicing.  GEN 6 
also contains basic tests including in vii a requirement that development 
provides safe and convenient access for a range of users, and adequate 
parking and servicing. 

The proposals here involve relatively minor changes to the existing situation, 
as the intention is to relocate the existing access onto the private road some 3 
metres to the north (see plan at the front of the report).  There are objections 
to the proposals based on the number of cars/car spaces and dangers at the 
access onto the private road serving other properties.  The application forms 
refer to 4 parking spaces and 5 cycle spaces within the current site and 
between 4 and 6 parking spaces and 5 cycle spaces within the proposed site.  
The Highways Officer raises no objections to the proposals subject to the 
provision of the parking and turning areas as shown on the plans. 

In acknowledging concerns over the development, officers’ opinion is that 
there would be no unacceptable highways impacts likely to arise from a 
replacement dwelling proposal here.  The plans show the intention to run a 
standard driveway to a turning and parking area in front of the proposed 
house and garage.  Although the application forms refer to the provision of 4-
6 parking spaces, this would represent a maximum number of spaces if the 
whole of the driveway and parking/turning area was occupied by cars.  It 
would be possible to park some 4 cars within the existing driveway to Nevis.  
The access is onto an existing shared private road used by 4 other properties, 
and is not considered to pose any significant increased risk to vehicles and 
pedestrians.  In relation to concerns over blockage of the private road during 
construction works, it would seem reasonable to condition that construction 
vehicles do not use the private road as the means of access during demolition 
or new build works. 

4.2.6 Design and Access/Sustainability Code/Access for All
Guidance in TAN 12 Design and TAN 22 Sustainable Buildings has 
introduced an obligation on applicants to demonstrate the approach to a 
range of design considerations, including how inclusive design and standards 
of environmental sustainability are to be achieved.  These reflect general 
requirements in the strategic policies of the Unitary Plan STRAT 1, 2 and 13 
to ensure sustainable development principles are embodied in schemes. 

The Design and Access Statement confirms the property will be constructed 
to meet the minimum Code Level 3 for Sustainable Homes.  The unit contains 
a ground floor w.c., and allows for a ramped access and level pathways 

Tudalen 74



 46

around the site to allow ease of access for wheelchair users. 

Suitably worded conditions can be included in any permission to ensure the 
development is carried out in accordance with the requirements of 
Sustainability Code guidance.  The site is relatively flat and allows level 
access for persons with disability. 

Other matters
Land ownership issues
In response to questions raised by third parties, the applicant has confirmed 
that he owns the Nevis plot, and that a section of the site is in separate 
ownership (Clwyd View Caravan Park).  He has revised the application forms 
to confirm that the relevant notice has been served on the owner, which is in 
accordance with current legislation.  Third parties have been notified of this. 

The legal issue of incursion into part of the Caravan Site and the loss of two 
touring caravan plots is a matter between the applicant and the owner of that 
site.  The Council’s duty is to determine whether the proposals for a 
replacement dwelling are acceptable, and the relevant land use planning 
considerations are set out in the preceding sections of the report.  The 
applicant has advised that the landowner is aware of the fact that the 
proposals would take in two touring caravan plots, and has no objection to 
this. 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The proposal is to replace an existing single storey dwelling with a 4 bedroom house.  

The plot lies within the settlement boundary of Rhuddlan where the principle of such 
development is acceptable, subject to detailed impact tests. 

5.2 The Environment Agency has no objections to the proposals in respect of Flooding 
issues, subject to the imposition of suitable conditions.  Having regard to concerns 
over access/parking, visual and residential amenity concerns, officers consider the 
details are acceptable, and therefore recommend the grant of permission.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years 
from the date of this permission. 
2. Notwithstanding the detailing on the proposed plans, the roof of the dwelling shall be 
clad in natural mineral slate. 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without 
modification) no windows additional to those shown on the approved plans shall be inserted 
at any time in the dwelling hereby permitted, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
4. No boundary fencing shall be erected until the written approval of the detailing has 
been obtained from the local planning authority, and the fencing shall be erected strictly in 
accordance with the approved details. 
5. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the 
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons 
following the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of 
five years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 
6. No trees or hedges within the application site shall be felled, lopped or topped without 
the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.  Those removed without consent or 

Tudalen 75



 47

which die or are severely damaged or become seriously diseased within five years of the 
completion of the development shall be replaced with trees or hedgerow plants of such size 
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
7. All trees and hedges to be retained as part of the development hereby permitted shall 
be protected during site clearance and construction work by 1 metre high fencing erected 1 
metre outside the outermost limits of the branch spread, or in accordance with an alternative 
scheme agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority;  no construction materials or 
articles of any description shall be burnt or placed on the ground that lies between a tree trunk 
or hedgerow and such fencing, nor within these areas shall the existing ground level be raised 
or lowered, or any trenches or pipe runs excavated, without prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
8. The new dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code 
for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credit under category - Ene 1 - 
Dwelling Emission Rate in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes: Technical Guide November 2010.  The development shall be carried out entirely in 
accordance with the approved assessment and certification. 
9. Construction of the dwelling hereby permitted shall not begin until an 'Interim 
Certificate' has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum 
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under Ene 1 - Dwelling 
Emission Rate, has been achieved for that individual dwelling or house type in accordance 
with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide November 2010. 
10. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, a Code for Sustaianble 
Homes 'Final Certificate' shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority certifying that a 
minimum Code for Sustaianble Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under Ene 1 - 
Dwelling Emission Rate, has been achieved for that dwelling in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code for Sustaianble Homes: Technical Guide November 2010. 
11. No vehicles involved in the demolition of the existing dwelling or the construction of 
the new dwelling shall be permitted to use the private road serving existing dwellings Bryn 
Foel, Loretto, Maberta, and Hillcreset off Marsh Road. 
12. The finished ground floor level shall be set at a minimum of 4.70m AOD. 
13. The finished first floor level shall bet set at a minimum level of 6.41m AOD. 
14. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
No development shall be permitted to commence until there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority:- 

a)  Full structural details of the dwelling, to demonstrate the robustness of construction and 
the ability of the dwelling to withstand the velocities and depth of flooding it may be exposed 
to, including damage from floating debris. 
b)  Full details of proposed emergency plans, procedures and measures to reduce the 
hazards associated with flooding, and to address structural damage in the event of flooding 
events.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.
2. In the interests of visual amenity. 
3. To maintain a reasonable standard of privacy in adjoining dwellings and gardens in 
the interests of amenity 
4. In the interests of visual amenity. 
5. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity. 
6. To safeguard the existing trees and hedges on the site, in the interests of the visual 
amenities of the locality. 
7. In order to ensure that trees and hedges to be retained are not damaged by building 
or engineering works. 
8. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings. 

Tudalen 76



 48

9. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings. 
10. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings. 
11. To ensure there is no obstruction to users of the private access road to the plot or 
damage to that road in connection with the carrying out of the development. 
12. To reduce the risk of flooding to the property. 
13. To ensure that the first floor of the property is flood free during predicted flood events. 
14. To ensure the dwelling is able to withstand a flood event, and that adequate 
measures are in place to prepare for such an event. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

With regard to the extent of the application site, your attention is drawn to the fact that this 
intrudes into part of the Clwyd View Caravan Park and would take up an area within which 
there are two touring caravan plots approved in 2001.  You should therefore ensure that the 
development is capable of implementation without legal challenge, as the grant of planning 
permission does not convey any rights to carry on development on third party land. 

You are also advised that occupiers of properties served by the private track leading onto 
Marsh Road have rights of unobstructed access, and that appropriate steps should be taken 
at demolition/construction stage to ensure the access is not blocked by vehicles or material at 
any time. 

In connection with Condition 16, prior to the submission of any details, you are advised to 
contact the Environment Agency to discuss the approach to the detailing of Construction and 
emergency plans in the event of a flood event.

Tudalen 77



 49

DXR
ITEM NO: 8

WARD NO: Rhyl South 

APPLICATION NO: 45/2011/1512/ PF 

PROPOSAL: Use of land and buildings for provision of a storage centre and siting of 
container units 

LOCATION: Land rear of Sanlam Offices Derwen House  Ffordd Derwen   Rhyl 

APPLICANT: ME & HIM Storage    

CONSTRAINTS: Tree Preservation Order 

C1 Flood Zone 
PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

! Recommendation to grant / approve – 4 or more objections received 

! Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 

! Member request for referral to Committee 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL 
“Objection. Notwithstanding the amended application the Council remains concerned 
that there is an oversupply of this type of facility within the local area and the 
development if permitted would have negative impact on the residential amenities of 
residents on Ffordd Derwen and users of the footpath/cycleway adjacent to the River 
Clwyd.  The Council is also concerned that while this land is allocated for EMP 2 in the 
UDP the level of job creation (3 posts) from the proposal is minimal in relation to the 
size of the site.  The Council is also concerned at the impact on traffic management on 
the Ffordd Derwen road with its junction with Rhuddlan Road particularly at peak traffic 
times”. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY 
No objection subject to the use of watertight shipping containers and the developer 
being made aware of potential flood risks and mitigation. 

FARMING AND WILDLIFE ADVISORY GROUP CYMRU 
No objection from an arboricultural point of view subject to containers being stored at 
least 3m from the crown spread of trees. 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES 
HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
In relation to highways no objection raised subject to condition requiring the works for 
car parking and turning to be completed prior to occupation, and retained thereafter. 

Tudalen 78



 50

DEVELOPMENT PLAN OFFICER 
No objection. B8 use is appropriate for designated employment site in relation to Policy 
EMP 2 and would bring a disused site back into employment use. 

POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER 
No objection 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Letters of objection received from: 
Mr. S. Jones, Llanon, Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl (e-mail) 
G. & J. Poole, 11, Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl (e-mail) 
Haf Steel, 17 Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl 
J Lloyd, 15, Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl 
D. & J. Timothy, Blaen y Coed, Ffordd Derwen, Y Rhyl 

Summary of planning based objections: 
Impact on residential amenity - disturbance caused by increased activity levels 
Impact on local highway network - increased traffic will have unacceptable impact on 
traffic flows 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   15/02/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

! additional information required from applicant 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is for the change of use of land from B1 to B8 and the siting of 

container units to form a storage centre. The proposed operating hours are 
07.00hrs to 19.00hrs Monday to Friday, 08.00hrs to 19.00hrs on Saturdays 
and 10.00hrs to 18.00hrs Sundays and Bank Holidays.  

1.1.2 The proposal is for the siting of 85 units on approximately 0.7ha of land. 36 
‘larger’ units would measure 12m in length, 3.6m in width and 3.4m in height. 
49 ‘smaller’ units would measure 6m in length, 2.4m in width and 2.5m in 
height.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is located to the rear of the existing Sanlam offices on Ffordd 

Derwen, Rhyl. The site is served by an existing access directly off Ffordd 
Derwen which runs alongside the existing offices. The access is adjacent to 
and opposite existing residential properties on Ffordd Derwen. 

1.2.2 The site has mature trees to the north western and south western boundaries. 
There is an existing 1m bund to the south east boundary and the existing 
Sanlam offices are to the north west of the site. 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary and designated employment 

land in the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan. The site lies entirely 
within a C1 Flood Zone on the development advice maps produced by the 

Tudalen 79



 51

Environment Agency. 

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 This section’s records reveal a change of use from a creamery to a Cash and 

Carry store, granted permission in 1982 and a change of use from Cash and 
Carry site to Class B1 light industrial and formation of 7 light industrial units 
from alterations and extensions to existing buildings, granted permission in 
1998.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Proposed operating hours have been amended in response to local concern.  

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Change of use from creamery to wholesale Cash and Carry store GRANTED on 

09/11/1982. 

2.2 Change Of Use & Alterations/extension To Building To Form 7 Industrial Units 
GRANTED 12/03/1998. 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3

rd
 July 2002)

Policy GEN 1 - Development within development boundaries
Policy GEN 6 - Development control requirements
Policy ENV 7 - Landscape and townscape features
Policy ENP 6 - Flooding
Policy EMP 2 - Main employment areas
Policy TRA 6 - Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows 
Policy TRA 9 - Parking and Servicing Provision 

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG Note 6 - Trees and development

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (February 2011)

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact 
4.1.3 Impact on residential amenity
4.1.4 Highways/access issues
4.1.5 Flood risk 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The proposal is for the change of use of land from Use Class B1 to B8. The 
site is within a designated EMP 2 main employment area as defined by the 
Unitary Development Plan. Policy EMP 2 states that B8 uses will be permitted 
within EMP 2 subject to compliance with detailed tests of impacts. The 
proposed development is therefore considered acceptable in principle. 
Compliance with the detailed tests is assessed below. 

Tudalen 80



 52

4.2.2 Visual and landscape impact
Criterion ii) of Policy GEN 6 requires that proposals do not unacceptably 
affect the form and character of surrounding landscape and townscape. 
Policy ENV 7 states that development should be designed to retain 
landscape and townscape features, including trees. 

The proposed development is largely screened from public view points by 
existing mature trees and buildings. The south eastern boundary is currently 
marked by a 1m bund and it the most exposed boundary. FWAG have 
recommended that containers are stored at least 3m from the crown spread 
in order to protect boundary trees. The maximum height of the proposed 
containers is 3.6m. 

Having regard to the location of the site, existing boundary treatments and 
the scale of the proposed units, it is considered that the proposals will have a 
limited impact on the surrounding landscape and townscape. Subject to the 
retention of the existing mature trees and supplementary planting to the south 
eastern boundaries, the proposals are considered to have an acceptable 
visual and landscape impact. 

4.2.3 Impact on residential amenity
Criterion v) of Policy GEN 6 requires that proposals do not have an 
unacceptable affect on the amenity of local residents by virtue of increased 
activity, disturbance, noise, dust, fumes, litter etc. 

The site has an extant permission for B1 light industrial use with existing 
buildings within the site providing approximately 850m

2
of floorspace. This 

permission restricts industrial processes and the use of machinery on the site 
to between 08.00hrs and 18.00hrs Monday to Saturday. The restrictions of 
use relate specifically to industrial processes and use of machinery, and is 
not a general restriction to the use of the site. The closest residential property 
is approximately 50m away from the proposed storage area. The access to 
the site is opposite a number of residential properties and the access track 
runs approximately parallel to the boundary of the nearest residential 
property, Blaen y Coed. 

Neighbours have raised concerns over the impact the proposed development 
would have in relation to the amenity of residential properties in the locality. 
Concerns include the level of disturbance caused by traffic visiting the site, 
glare from security lighting and disturbance caused by use of the site outside 
of proposed hours of operation. 

Concerns of local residents are duly noted. However it is suggested that the 
current proposals must be assessed in relation to the site being designated 
employment land with an extant permission for B1 use. Having regard to the 
use already permitted, officers consider that the proposed use would not 
have such an adverse impact on residential amenity that could substantiate a 
refusal. Therefore the proposals are considered acceptable in relation to 
residential amenity. 

4.2.4 Highways/access amenity
The main Unitary Plan policies relevant to assessment of highway impact are 
TRA 6 and TRA 9.  TRA 6 permits new development provided there is no 
unacceptable impact on the safe and free flow of traffic and the capacity of 
and traffic conditions on the surrounding road network are satisfactory. TRA 9 
requires adequate provision within a site for parking and servicing. 

Tudalen 81



 53

The proposed development would utilise an existing access off Ffordd 
Derwen. The access to the site is approximately 180m from the A525. The 
stretch of road between the site access and the A525 is subject to traffic 
calming measures. Local residents have raised concerns in relation to the 
impact traffic levels will have on the local highway network. The Highways 
Officer has raised no objection to the proposals subject to facilities being 
retained within the site for the loading, unloading, parking and turning of 
vehicles in accordance with the submitted details. 

It is considered that the layout as proposed provides adequate provision 
within the site for parking and servicing. It is also considered having regard to 
the B1 use already permitted that the levels of traffic generated by the 
proposals would not have an unacceptable impact in relation to the capacity 
of the surrounding road network. The proposals are therefore considered to 
have an acceptable impact in relation to highways and access issues. 

4.2.5 Flood risk
Policy ENP 6 requires that development does not result in an unacceptable 
risk from flooding. 

The site is located entirely within the C1 flood zone. The Environment Agency 
have raised no objection subject to the shipping containers being watertight 
and the developer being advised to install flood proofing measures. The 
Environment Agency have advised that should the units on the site not be 
watertight, then a holding objection would be placed pending the submission 
of a full FCA. 

Subject to a condition requiring the containers installed on the site to be 
watertight, and provided that the applicant is advised to install flood proofing 
measures, it is considered the proposals are acceptable in relation to flood 
risk. 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 Having consideration to the employment designation and the extant permissions 

relating to the site, it is considered that the proposals will not have an unacceptable 
impact in relation to residential amenity, highways safety and other relevant policy 
tests. It is therefore recommended that permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years 
from the date of this permission. 
2. Details of additional landscaping along the south eastern boundary of the site shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development 
hereby approved being brought into use. 
3. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall 
be carried out no later than the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of 
the first caravan.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of 
the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the local 
planning authority gives written approval to any variation. 
4. No container units shall be store within 3 meters of the crown spread of boundary 
trees marked on the plans hereby approved. 
5. None of the trees or hedges shown on the approved plans as being retained shall be 
felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. Any 
trees or hedgerow plants which die or are seriously damaged or become seriously diseased 
within five years of the completion of the development shall be replaced with trees or 

Tudalen 82



 54

hedgerow plants of such a size and species to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.
6. No commercial or business use shall be permitted to take place at the site outside of 
the hours 07.00hrs to 19.00hrs Monday to Friday, 08.00hrs - 19.00hrs on Saturdays and 
10.00hrs to 18.00hrs Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
7. Full details of measures to prevent use of the site outside of the hours hereby 
approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior 
to the development being brought into use and the measures approved shall be undertaken 
and retained at all times in accordance with the approved details. 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.
2. In the interest of landscape and visual amenity. 
3. In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
4. In the interest of landscape and visual amenity. 
5. In the interest of landscape and visual amenity. 
6. In the interest of residential amenity. 
7. In the interest of residential amenity. 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

FLOODING 

If the developer is unable to confirm that watertight containers will be used on site, he should 
be advised to submit a FCA.  The criteria for the FCA, which should normally be undertaken 
by a suitably qualified person carrying an appropriate professional indemnity, are given under 
Section 7 and Appendix 1 of TAN15. Prior to undertaking a FCA, the applicant is advised to 
contact Jane Hodgson, Development and Flood Risk Engineer, on 01248 484063 for 
additional advice and information on preparing a FCA which is appropriate to the scale and 
nature of the development. 

Surface water drainage from new development can, if not properly controlled, significantly 
increase the frequency and size of floods in drainage systems that receive the surface water 
drainage. To achieve any attenuation of surface waters on site, the Environment Agency 
advocates the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). Further information can be 
found in CIRIA publications C522 SuDS - Design manual for England and Wales & C523 
SuDS - Best Practice Manual. 

You should be aware that Section 8 of TAN15 (para.8.4) states that if SuDS cannot be 
implemented, a conventional drainage system will need to improve on the status quo. 

Tudalen 83



 55

Tudalen 84



 1

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
21AIN MAWRTH 2012 

                 EITEM AGENDA RHIF 6 

ADRODDIAD GAN BENNAETH Y GWASANAETHAU CYNLLUNIO, ADFYWIO A 
RHEOLEIDDIO 

APÊL CYNLLUNIO 

ADEILADU CARTREF GOFAL 60 GWELY Y TU ÔL I GARTREF PRESENNOL, 
ADEILADU MAES PARCIO NEWYDD A MYNEDFA NEWYDD I GERBYDAU O 

RODFA’R DWYRAIN A LÔN WASANAETH O TARLETON STREET 

CARTREF PRESWYL ST DAVID’S, RHODFA’R DWYRAIN, Y RHYL 

CAIS 45/2011/0572/ PF 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD

1.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn ymwneud â phenderfyniad y Pwyllgor Cynllunio i wrthod, yn erbyn yr hwn 
y cyflwynwyd apêl ffurfiol. Caiff yr apêl ei thrin trwy gyfrwng Gwrandawiad. 

1.2 Bydd yr adroddiad yn rhoi’r wybodaeth gefndir berthnasol i’r Aelodau, ac yn gofyn i’r aelodau 
benodi dau gynrychiolydd i roddi tystiolaeth yn y gwrandawiad yn unol â Pharagraff 9.3 
Protocol Apeliadau Cynllunio a Chyfranogiad Aelodau. 

2. CEFNDIR  

2.1 Mae’r apêl cynllunio wedi deillio o benderfyniad y Pwyllgor i wrthod cymeradwyo cais i 
adeiladu cartref gofal 60 gwely, gyda gwaith mynedfa a pharcio cysylltiedig, yng Nghartref 
Preswyl St David’s, Rhodfa’r Dwyrain, y Rhyl. 

2.2 Cyflwynwyd y cais ym Mai 2011 a’i ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ym Medi 2011. 
Argymhelliad y swyddog oedd RHOI caniatâd. Penderfynodd y Pwyllgor WRTHOD caniatâd 
am y rhesymau canlynol: 

1.  “Mae’r Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol yn ystyried bod lefel y ddarpariaeth ar gyfer parcio oddi ar 
y stryd a’r trefniadau mynediad ar gyfer cerbydau gwasanaeth ac argyfwng mewn perthynas â 
datblygiadau cysylltiedig â Chartref presennol St David’s a’r Cartref Gofal arfaethedig yn 
annigonol ac yn debygol o barhau’r problemau sy’n deillio o ddefnyddio Tarleton Street fel 
ffordd wasanaeth ac ar gyfer parcio cerbydau staff ac ymwelwyr. Ystyrir bod Tarleton Street 
yn ffordd annigonol i wasanaethu’r datblygiad, gan fod lled y gerbydlon yn gyfyngedig, mae 
parcio ar y stryd, a llwybr cerdded cul na ellir ei ddefnyddio ar un ochr yn unig. Ystyrir bod y 
cynigion yn gwrthdaro â phrofion vi a vii Polisi GEN 6, prawf v Polisi CF5, a Pholisïau TRA6 a 
TRA9 Cynllun Datblygu Unedol Sir Ddinbych, a’r canllawiau parcio yn Nodyn Canllawiau 
Cynllunio Atodol y Cyngor Rhif 21 – Gofynion Parcio ar Ddatblygiadau Newydd, sy’n ceisio 
sicrhau trefniadau parcio a gwasanaethu digonol ar ddatblygiadau newydd” 

Eitem Agenda 6

Tudalen 85



 2

2.  “ Ystyria’r Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol y byddai’r cynigion yn arwain at or-ddwysád datblygiad ar y 
safle, gan arwain at ddatblygiad cyfyng a lle agored annigonol i drigolion y ddau Gartref Gofal, 
yn groes i brofion i, ii a iii Polisi GEN 6 a phrawf iv Polisi CF5 Cynllun Datblygu Unedol Sir 
Ddinbych”. 

2.3 Yr unig benderfyniad yn y Pwyllgor oedd rhoi caniatâd, ond y bleidlais oedd 13-7 i wrthod. Y 
Cynghorwyr a siaradodd yn erbyn rhoi caniatâd oedd y Cynghorwyr Bellis, Bartley,  a 
Pennington. (Cofnodion ynghlwm er mwyn cyfeirio atynt) 

2.4 Dyddiad y Dystysgrif o Benderfyniad ffurfiol oedd 6ed Hydref 2011. 

2.5 Hysbysodd yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio y Cyngor o’r apêl ar 21ain Chwefror, 2012.  Maent wedi 
dweud y caiff yr apêl ei thrin mewn Gwrandawiad, ac mai dyddiad y gwrandawiad fydd dydd 
Mawrth Mehefin 19eg, 2012.  

2.6 Rhaid anfon Datganiad y Cyngor ar yr apêl, ac unrhyw sylwadau pellach gan drydydd partïon, 
at yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio erbyn 3ydd Ebrill, 2012. 

3. PENDERFYNIAD A GEISIR 

3.1 Gan fod y penderfyniad i wrthod yn groes i argymhelliad y swyddog, mae angen dilyn 
y Protocol a fabwysiadwyd ar gyfer delio ag Apeliadau Cynllunio a Chyfranogiad 
Aelodau. 

Dywed Paragraff 9.3: 
“Bydd angen i aelodau’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio gyflwyno tystiolaeth mewn ymchwiliad neu 
wrandawiad anffurfiol ar apeliadau lle mae argymhelliad swyddog wedi ei wrthdroi. 
Dylai’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio benodi cynrychiolwyr i gyflwyno tystiolaeth yn y 
gwrandawiad/ymchwiliad (fel rheol cynigydd ac eilydd y cynnig)” 

4. ARGYMHELLIAD

4.1 Bod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio yn penodi dau gynrychiolydd i gyflwyno tystiolaeth yn y 
Gwrandawiad. 

GRAHAM H. BOASE 
PENNAETH GWASANAETHAU CYNLLUNIO, ADFYWIO A RHEOLEIDDIO 

Tudalen 86


	Rhaglen
	4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 15FED CHWEFROR 2012 (Copi ynghlwm)
	5 CEISIADAU AM GANIATAD I DDATBLYGU (Copiau ynghlwm)
	6 HYSBYSIAD O APEL CYNLLUNIO, CATREF PRESWYL ST DAVID'S, RHODFA'R DWYRAIN / TARLETON STREET, Y RHYL - YN ERBYN GWRTHOD CARTREF GOFAL 60 GWELY, GYDA GWAITH MYNEDFA A PHARCIO CYSYLLTIEDIG

